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For the year ended 37 Decernber POTE

2016 2015 Variance %
N'000 N'000
Turnover - 9,808,274 11,945,313 -18%
Loss before taxation (2.818.295)  (4,306,120) -35%
Taxation (81.310) 124,479 165%
Loss after taxation (2,900,609) (4,181,641) -3%
Other comprehensive income net of tax 1,765 BB1.412 -B9%
Total comprehensive loss for the year after tax (2,892,844) (3,300,229) -12%
Share Capital 588,117 EBB. 177 0%
Total Equity (2.947 BBE3I) L‘-iﬂ.TSS]I T136%
Per 50K share data:
Based on 1,176,353,605 (2015 -1,176,353,695)
Ordinary shares of 50k each:
Basic Loss Per Share (Kobo ) (246) (355)
Diluted Loss Per Share (Kobo ) (246} (355)
Met assets (kobo) {251) -3
Dividend declared
Dividend caver (times)
Stock Exchange quotation at year end (kobo) 50 50
MNumber of employess (group) 288 311
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Board of Directors: = SirSunday Nnamdi Nwosu, K85, G004, MieD - Acting Chairman
= Mr. Clement Adekunle Olowokande [Retired on April 27, 20717]
» Mr. Bukola Oluseyi Cnajide - Managing Directar
= Alhaji Sanusi Ado Bayero [Retired on Decernber 28, 2016]
= Mr. Akin Ajayi
* Ms. Adeola Adenike Ade-Ojo
* Dr. Adewale Olawoyin, 38N
= Alhaji Ali Safiyanu Madugu, mni
* Mrs. Folasade Qluwatoyin Ogunde [ Appoinfed on April 10, 2017
s Mrs, Aderemi 0. Akinsete-Chidi [ Afternate Director fo
Ms. A A Ade Qjo, Appointed on Aprf 10, 2017)

Registered Office: 18 Fatai Atere Way
Matari, Oshodi
Lagos
Registration No.: RC 1482
Company Secretary: Dlukayode Adeoluwa & Co

18 Fatai Atere Way

Matari, Oshodi
%

Independent Auditor: KPMG Professional Services
KPMG Tower
Bishop &boyade Cole Street
Victoria Istand, Lagos

Company's Bankers: Access Bank Nigeria PLC
Diamond Bank PLC
Ecobank Migena PLC
Fidelity Bank PLC
First Bank of Nigeria PLC
First City Monument Bank PLC
Guaranty Trust Bank PLC
Keystone Bank Limited
Mainstreet Bank Limited
Skye Bank PLC
Stanbic - |BTC Bank PLC
aterling Bank PLC
Union Bank of Nigeria PLC
United Bank For Africa PLC
Unity Bank PLC
Wema Bank PLC
Zenith Bank PLC
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BACKGROUND

R.T. Briscoe (Nigeria) PLC ("Briscoe”) was
incorporated in Migeria on 9th March, 1957, as
a Private Limited Liability Company and
became a wholly owned subsidiary of the East
Asiatic Company Ltd A/S ("EAC") of
Copenhagen- Denmark in 1961. Briscoe
became a public Company in 1973 and the
shares were listed for guotation on the
Nigerian Stock Exchange in 1974, In August
2002, EAC divested its shareholding in Briscoe
toMigerian investors.

Briscoe started its business activities in
Nigeria with the importation of building
materials and some English trucks under an
agency arrangement brokered by its parent
Company. Since 1957, when Briscoe was
incorporated, the Company has witnessed
tremendous growth and has diversified its area
of operations to include the sales and service of
motor vehicles and technical equipment.

Briscoe has since 1957 under the trade name
“Briscoe Motors" been a dealer of Toyota
vehicles in Nigeria, Between 1970 and August
1992, Briscoe served as the exclusive dealer for
Volvo vehicles in Nigeria with sales and service
outlets in various parts of the country until the
Agreement was mutually terminated by both
parties, Between 2005 and June 2016, Briscoe
was also an authorized dealer of Ford Motor
Company until the mutual termination of the
dealership agreement by both parties. The
marketing, sales and servicing of Ford vehicles
was conducted under the trade name -
Briscoeford,

Briscoe has its head office at Matori, Lagos and
branch offices at lkeja, Victoria Island, Lekki,
Kano, Asaba, Port Harcourt and Abuja.

Company Profile

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Presently, Briscoe is engaged in the marketing,
sales and servicing of Toyota motor vehicles
under the trade name BriscoeToyota as one of
the B8 authorised dealers of Toyota Nigeria
Limited. It is also engaged in the real estate
sector and deals in industrial equipments,

Business Units

The BriscoeToyota Division deals in the sales
and servicing of Toyota motor vehicles.
BriscoeToyota workshops are equipped with
the state-of-the-art electronic and
computerized eguipment to ensure that the
company offers the highest possible guality
after-sales service, Qur workshops are among
the best in the country through regular
facilities improvement activities.
BriscoeToyota was the first Toyota dealer to
receive the highly coveted Toyota award for
Service Marketing Excellence (TSL) from
Toyota Mator Corporation (TMC) Japan.

The Briscoe Industrial Equipment Division of
the Company handles the sales and servicing
of industrial, mining, construction and
warehouse equipment as well as generating
sets, The Division markets and services Toyota,
BT & Raymond brands of forklifts and other
material handling equipments. The Elgi brand
of compressors are currently being marketed
through CAWS Technical Nigeria Limited, a
fully owned subsidiary of the company.

Briscoe Properties Limited, a fully owned
subsidiary is invalved in facilities
management, property development, project
management and estate management
services. Briscoe Properties Limited has
developed a number of residential properties in
Migeria and presently manages a large
portfolic of commercial and residential
properties in lkoyi, Victoria lsland, Apapa, lkeja,
Yaba, Abuja, Lekki etc. It also provides property
marketing servicestoitsvastclientele.
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1. Sir Sunday Mnamdi Mwosu, k55, GCoa MioD 15 the
Acting Chalrman of the Campany. A well known
Apostle of good corporate governance, he is the

Founder of the |ndependent Shareholders
Association of Migeria. He is an astute investor in a
sizeable number of quoted companies on the
Migerian Stock Exchange and also serves on the
Board ar Audit Cormmittee of some of them. Sir
Mwosu is an active member In the Federal
Government Commission on Vision 20:20:20 and
also a member of the Institute of Directors, He has
previously served as the Chairman of the Board's
Financial Controls, Systems and Risks Committes
and member of the Executive Selection and
Remuneration as well as the Business Strategy and
Re-Engineering Committees. Sir Mwosu was
appointed to the Board on March 27, 2014 and as
Acting Chairmanon &April 27, 2017,

2. Mr. Bukola Oluseyi Onajide |5 the Managing
Director, He started his professional career as an
intern with Deloitte Haskins & 5ells, an
international firm of Chartered Accountants, and
qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1888,
Subsequently, He obtained a Masters Degree in
Business Administration from the University of
Lagos (1998) and now a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Migeria (JICAN), He has
attended many management courses locally and
internationally, including the prestigious Lagos
Business School and famous INSEAD, France,
Frior to his joining Briscoe in 1998, he had worked
with SCOA Nigeria PLC (1990-1993 and 1924-18396)
where he became the AGM Finance and
subseguently as a Management Consultant to
Aleherm Industries Limited {1996-1997) and
Management Development Associates (1998), He
wasemployed by R.T, Briscoe on the 15t of July 19398,
appointed Finance Director in December 2004,
Executive Director in charge of the motar business
inJanuary 2006, In April 2008, he was appointed the
Deputy Managing Director, Managing Director —
Designate in July 2009 and became the Managing
DirectorinJanuary 2010,

3. Mr. Akin Ajayi graduated from the University of Ife
(now Cbafemi Awolowo University), lle-Ife in 1984
with- a Bachelor of Science iB.5c) degree in
Economics. He is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of MNigeria and a seasoned

Banker with a wealth of over 20 years experience,
He has also attended several short term courses at
prestigious business schools which include the
International Management Development Institute
{IMD), Switzerland in 1993, Lagos Business School
(LES) in 1295, The Cranfield University, UK in 2001,
The Gordon Institute of Business Science (GIBBS),
University of Pretoria, South Africa in 2004 and
Columbia University, USA in 2006. Mr. Ajayi worked
as an Officer in the Controls/éudit Department of
First City Merchant Bank Limited from 1988 to 1990,
He was the Managing Director of Equity Bank Lid
from 2003 to 2005 before Its merger with
Intercontinental Bank Pic in 2005 where he served
as Executive Director from 2005 till his retirement
from the Bank in 2008, He is currently the
Chairman/Chief Executive Officer of Libra Energy
services Ltd and also serves on the Boards of other
private and public Companies including a MNon-
Government Crganisation. Mr. Ajayi was appointed
a Director of the Company in July 2009. He |s the
Chairman of the Company's Audit Committee as
well as the Board's Business Strategy and Re-
Engineering Cormmittes, and member of the
Financial Controls, Systems and Risks Committes
and the Executive Selection and Remuneration
Committes

4. Ms. Adeola Adenike Ade Ojo is an internationally
renowned fashion designer and winner of several
local and international awards, She is a graduate of
the University of Miami where she graduated with a
Bachelor of Business degree in 1987. She oblained
a Masters of Science (M.Sc) degree in Finance from
the University of Lagos in 1989, Ms. Ade Ojo has
served as Nigerian Representative in an
international campaign by the United Mation World
Food Program to ralse money towards halving the
number of hungry people In the world particularly
children, She was appointed a MNon-Executive
Director in December, 2004. She is a member of the
Board's Financial Controls, Systems and Risks
Commitiee.

5. Dr. Adewale Olawoyin, san is a Legal Practitioner
and Senior Lecturer in law at the University of
Lagos. He is a 1987 graduate of the Law faculty of
the University of lfe (now Cbafemi Awolowo
University), lle-ife and was called to the Bar in 1988,
Healso has a Masters degree in law (LL.M) from the
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Landon School of Economics and Political
Science, UK and a PhD in law from the University of
Bristol, UK. Dr. Qlawoyin started hiscareer in 1588
with a one year stint as Legal Assistant at the
Migeria Merchant Bank Limited before joining the
law firm of Clawoyin & Olawoyin in 1982 where he
has been actively Involved in legal practice in
various capacities as Assoclate, Senior Associate
and Partner, He is currently the Managing Partner
of the firm. He serves on the Boards of several
private Companies including a Non-Government
Cirganisation, He was appointed a Director of the
Company in July 2009, He Is the Chalrman of the
Board's Executive Selection and Remuneration
Committee and member of the Financial Controls.
Systems and Risks Committee as well as the
Business Strategy and Re-Engineering Commities,

6. Alhaji Ali Safiyanu Madugu, mni an industrialist
is the Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer of
Daila Foods Migeria Limited, a food processing
Company. He holds pest graduate diplomas in
Management as well as a Masters degree In
Business Administration. He is a member of
several professional bodies which include the
Institute of Directors, Charlered Institute of
Marketing, UK, Nigerian Institute of Management
and the prestipious Mational Institute for Policy and
Strategic Studies. He was appointed a Director of
the Company in December2013. He iza member of
the Audit Committes as well as the Board's
Executive Selective & Remuneration and Business
Strategy and Re-Engineering Committees,

7. Mrs. Folasade Oluwatoyin Ogunde s a MNon-
executive and Independent Director of the
company. She is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Migeria and alsoc a
Facility Management Professional (FMP). She
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in
Economics trom the University of [te, lle-lfe in 1984
and has-attended several short term management
courses locally and abroad. Mrs, Ogunde attended
amongst various others the General Management
Program, Ashridge Business School,
Berkhamsted, Herffordshire. UK in 2000, the
Advanced Management Program, Cranfield
University, Bedfordshire, UK in 2004, the Real
Estate Management Program of the prestigious
Harvard Business School, Boston MA, USA in
Cctober 2012 and Board Effectiveness, Strategy &
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Corporate Governance programme facilitated by
the International |Institute for Management
Development (IMD), Switzerland in 2015, In her
warking career which has spanned over 30 years,
Mrs. Cgunde has served |n various Management
and Board positions as Auditor, Management
Accountant, Group Treasurer, Divisional
Commercial Director and Finance Director. She
started her working career in 1985 as an Audit
trainee in Deloitte Haskins + Sells (Chartered
Accountants) (now Akintola Williams Delaitte &
Co) and left In 1991 for brief stints as Treasury
Manager in a Savings & Loans company (1992-
1995) and as Consultant Auditor in International
Computers Limited (1995-1297) before joining the
UAC Group in MNovernmber 1997 as a mid-career
Manager. She rose through the ranks to become
Finance Director of UAC Property Development
Company PLC in 2005 before her retirement in May
2016, She currently serves as a Management and
Financial Consultant to companles in the private
sector. She was appointed Director of R.T. Briscoe
onApril 10,2017,

B. Mrs. Aderemi O. Akinsete-Chidi 15 alternate
Director to Ms, Adecta Adenike Ade-Ojo. She 15 a
professional Banker and Chartered Pension
Administrator with over 25 years' expenience In the
Banking and Sales & Service industry. She has
extensive experience in strategic planning,
operations/customer service and relationship
management, She graduated with a B.5c,
Accounting degree from the Oklahoma City
Wniversity, Oklahoma Clty, USA in 1983 and did her
post graduate studies at the Graduate Schoaol of
Management of the University of Maryland in 18991,
she is & member of the American Institute of
Banking, Washington DC, USA and an Associate
member of the Certified Pension Institute of
Migeria. She has attended several training courses
locallyand abroad, Mrs, Akinsete-Chidl started her
banking career with the First American Bank, US4
in 1289 and she has since then served in various
management positions in some MNigerian Banks -
Standard Chartered Bank PLC, the now defunct
FSB International Bank PLC, Its successor Fidelity
Bank Plc. First Bank of Nigeria PLC and Ecobank
Migeria Ltd. She currently serves on the Boards of
Levmora Nigerna Limited and Nub Petrochemical
Ltd. She was appointed an Alternate Director of
R.T. Briscoe with effect from Aprif 10.2017.
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Notice of Meeting

NOTICE I3 HERERY GIVEN that the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF R.T. BRISCOE (NIGERIA) PLC will be
held at the NECA HOUSE, PLOT A2, HAKEEM BALOGUN STREET, CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT,
ALAUSA, IKEJA, LAGOS STATE on THURSDAY 27TH JULY, 2017 at 11.00 A.M. for the transaction of the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. Telaybefore the meeting. the financial statements for the yearended 31st December, 2016
and the Reports of the Directors, Auditors and Audit Committes thereon

2. Tore-elect Directors

3. Teauthorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors
4. Toelect members ofthe Audit Committes
SPECIALBUSINESS

5. Tofixthe remuneration of the Directors

6. That the Directors be and are hereby authorised to raise additional Capital of up to N10,000,000,000
{Ten billion Naira only) via the issue of Debt Instruments, Preference shares (convertible or Non-
convertible) or Ordinary Shares ora combination of any of these options whether by way of Private
Placement, Rights to existing shareholders, offer for subscription or otherwise upon such terms and
conditions to be determined at the discretion of the Directors and subject to-any requisite regulatory

approvals.

T. Toauthorizethe company to procure goods and services necessary forits operations from related
companies

Lagos, Migeria By Order afthe Board

April 27,2017 Lg.mdg,a/(_r\

Dlukayode Adeoluwa
[FRC/Z013/NBAMDDRD00002108]
Olukayode Adeoluwa & Co.
Company Secretary
L ——————————
Proxies
A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote instead of him/her. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. Executed forms of proxy
should be deposited at either the registered office of the Company or the office of the Registrar not less
than 48 hours befere the time of halding the meeting. To be effective, the proxy form should be duly
stamped and signed,

Audit Committee

Any shareholder may nominate ancther shareholder as a member of the Audit Commitiee by giving notice
in writing of such nomimation to the Company Secretary at least 21 days before the date of the Annual
General Mesting.

Closure of Register
The Reglister of members will be closed from Monday. June 26 to Friday, June 30, 2017 both dates inclusive.

Right of Shareholders to ask Questions
Shareholders have a right to ask questions not only at the meeting but also in writing prier to the:meeting.
Such guestions must be submitted to the Company orthe Registrars on or before the 14th ot June, 2017,
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Chalrman's Statement

GENERAL

Fellow shareholders, it is my pleasure and a privilege to welcome you to the Annual General Meeting of our
Company for the first time as Acting Chairman of your Board of Directors. | was graciously appointed
Acting Chairman by my colleagues on the Board on the 27th of April, 2017 and solicit your unflinching
support to succeed, particularly during these trying and difficult times that our company is passing
through.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

It is customary to review the business environment for the period of operations that your Board would be
reporting its stewardship, You would however recall that this was dwelt upon at length at the last EGM and
AGM held an the 22nd of September, 2016 and the 29th of December, 2016 respectively. It suffices to state
that 2016 was a very challenging year for the company in view of the scarce foreign exchange toimport our
capital goods, astronomic interest rates, exorbitant costs due to inflation, and low demand for our
products, The Mational Bureau of Statistics confirmed that for the full year 2016, the GDP contracted by
1.51%. This was quite evident as ofl revenues, our country's major source of income fell significantly dueto
considerable drops in production levels and the collapse in oll prices to below USDE60 per barrel,

Our company continues to be confronted with the twin problems of a heavy debt
burden and a petition to wind us up for our perceived inability to service aur
credit facilities by one of our bankers. These two issues both threaten the
continued operations of our company as a going concern. The majar
focus of your Board since we mel at the AGM In December last year,
has been on how to resolve these issues and sustain cur company's
corporate existence.

RESULTS
The R.T. Briscoe Group and Company recorded another unsatisfactory
vear in 2016 with disappointing losses for the vear of N2.9 billlon and
MN3.1 billion respectively,. The motor business, our core business
activity was adversely affected by the harsh economic environment, As
g result of the exorbitant costs and constraints In sourcing foreign
exchange including the high import tariffs for imported fully built new
motor vehicles, prices of vehicles escalated to unprecedented levels.
This resulted in abysmally low consumer demand and a significant drop
in turmover. The revenues of the group and company as a consequence
both declined from MN11.9 billion and N11.0 billion respectively In 2015 to
MO8 billion and ME.8 billion in 2016, The turnaver of the motor business
also dropped because of the amicable discontinuation of the
Ford Dealership in the course of the year Qur
Technical and Real Estate businesses, carried

ocut through our fully owned subsidiaries,

CAWS Technical Limited and Briscoe

Properties Limited, however, fared much

betterwith modest profit,

DIRECTORS

On April 27, 2007, my predecessor and our
longstanding Chairman, Mr. Clement
Adekunle Qlowckande gracefully bowed out
from the Board of Directors of the company
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He had served the company as its Chairman meritoriously for over 14 years and having reached the
advanced age of 74 has earmed a well-deserved rest.

On behalt of my colleagues on the Board, Management and Stalf of the company including all
Shareholders, as well as myself, | wish to express our appreciation for the valuable and unguantifiable
contributions that Mr. Qlowokande has madeto the progress and development of the Company. | wish him
happiness and good health in retirement, and successin his future endeavours,

Mrs. Folasade Oluwatayin Ogunde, a Chartered Accountant and Facility Management Professional (FMP)
was recently appointed as a non-Executive Director of the company. She retired in May 2016 as the
Finance Director of UAC Property Development Co, PLC and brings to the Board a wealth of experience in
accounting, finance and management positions.

Mrs. Aderemi O, Akinsete-Chidi, a professional Banker and Chartered Pension Administrator with over 25
years' experience in the Banking and Sales & Service industry was appointed Alternate Director to Ms.
Adepla Adenike Ade-Ojo. Both appointments took effect from April 10, 2017

At this meeting, two Directors Alhaji &li Safivanu Madugu and my humble self, retire by rotation and being
eligible offer ourselves for re-election. | urge you to give us your usual support. The appointment of Mrs.
Folasade Oluwatoyin Ogunde who was appointed to the Board after the last Annual General Meeting
would also be coming up for appraval,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Board has recommended three non-executive Directors Yﬂl.ll" Bﬂﬂfd hﬁ[i ﬂl.!'ﬂ

Mr. Akin Ajayi, Dr. Adewale Clawoyin and Alhaji All Safivanu

Madugu as its three representatives on the Audit Commitiee embarked on a curpnrate

1{ 12 CL fimancial vear. s
or the currentfinancial year, restructurmg pfﬂEESS
In his remarks to the last AGM, my predecessor Mr. C.A with the nbjectiue Df

Olowokande assured that the reasons behind the impairment heni d
of about N1.1 billien within the trade and other receivables strengt ening an

account which was deemed irrecoverable by the Exernal empﬂwﬂring thﬂ non-

Auditors in their audit opinion would be properly investigated. .
Investigations on the matter are not yet conclusive. | am  motor businesses of the

however pleased to inform you of reports that some recoveries ]
have been made. Our Internal Auditors are still looking into the group Whlﬂh have

Issue and | am confident that they would get to the bottom of it proven to be pmfitﬂblg

hortly, "

SR with good growth
| am pleased to inform you that your Company has concluded pﬂﬂmﬁﬂfs.

the first two stages of the Corporate Governance Rating
System which is being coordinated by The Migerian Stock
Exchange and their Consultants. the Convention on Business
Integrity. These are the Corporate Compliance Self-Assessment Tool and the Fiduciary Awareness
Certification Test for Directors, We have now proceeded to the third and final stage which is the Corporate
Integrity Assessment phase and involves a stakeholders' survey of staff, suppliers and an expert multi-
stakeholder group evaluation,
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FUTUREPROSPECTS

bs mentioned earlier, the presarvation of the going concem status of the company has been the major pre-
occupation of your Board inthe past 6 months, After the EGM held in September 2018 where you ware
informed of the company's dire financial situation and the plans of the Board towards its recovery, your
Board has been unrelenting in ensuring that this goal isachieved,

Several meetings have been held with our bankers towards reaching an amicable long term repayment
plan including the restructuring of our credit facilities. The success of this would inevitably lead to the
termination of the winding-up petition against our company,

Your Board has also embarked on a corporate restructuring process with the objective of strengthening
and empowering the non-motor businesses of the group which have proven to be profitable with good
growth potentials. The current core businesses of the company are the Toyota Sales and After Sales
business, industrial compressor business (with our new Elgi dealership which has effectively replaced the
Atlas Copco dealership), our materials handling business and real estate subsidiary — Briscoe Properties
Limited. The motor business itself is constantly being reviewed for improvements in operational efficiency
and profitability, The results of this exercise are however not likely to manifest until the current debt burden
and huge interest expenses are satisfactorily settled. These measures are still ongoing and you would be
informed of developments as appropriate.  In the meantime,
vour Board is taking the necessary steps to assure our
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders of our continued
commitments o ourvarious undertakings.

Towards the recapitalization of the company, your Board has
secured the firm commitment of the current blec of majority
shareholders who have indicated that they have no objectiontoa
fair and equitable capital raising exercise conducted in the best
interest of the company that would result in the dilution ot their
majority shareholdings in the company. For added assurance to
our prospective investors and regulatory authorities, fresh
resolutions would be tabled at this meelting authorizing the
Board to raise fresh capital by way of equity or debt, or a
combination of both, This is expected to facilitate the injection of
fresh funds in part settlement of the amounts due to the banks
and to finance the working capital reguirements of the company,

In conclusion, | wish 1o assure all shareholders that our
company would survive its current challenges, If the economy of
pur nation which went through 10 months of successive
contractions in 2016 is now getting better, the story of our
company should not be different, The current reports as at the
time of my writing this statement are that our dear country
Migeria has started coming out of its economic recession,

Iwish you all a pleasant AGM. —

Lagos, Nigeria
April 27, 2017 Sir Sunday Nnamdi Nwosu, Kss, Gooa, MioD
ACTING CHAIRMAN
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Directors' Report
For the year ended 37 Decernber POTE

The Directors present their annual report on the affairs of BT Briscoe (Nigeria) PLC ("the Company") and
its subsidiaries ("the Group"), together with the financial statements and independent auditar's repart for
theyearended 31 December 2016,

Legal form
The Company was incorporated in Nigeria as a private imited liability company on @ March 1957 and was
converted to a public limited liability company in 1673, it was listed on the Nigeria Stock Exchange on 15
March 1974,

Principal Activity and Business Review

The principal activities of the Company continues to be the sale and service of technical eguipment,
including forklifts, industrial compressors, mining and drilling equipment, generating sets, Toycta and
Ford motor vehicles {except that on July 1, 2016 the company terminated it's relationship with Ford
Corporation as it relates to sales of Ford vehicles),

Thefallowing s a summary of the principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company:

Direct &Indirect
MName Principal activity Shareholding
B

Briscoe Properties Limited Facility management, property development
and sale and leasing of property. 100
CAWS Technical Migeria Limited Trading of industrial equipment 100
Suites Resorts Limited Shell Company 100
Briscoe Leasing Limited Mot operational 100
IMC Airpower Limited Mot operational 100
Briscoe-Ford Migeria Limited Mot operational 100
Briscoe Garages Limited Mot operational 100

Thefinancial results of these subsidiaries have been consolidated inthese financial statements.

Operating Results
Thetollowing is a summary ofthe Group and Company's operating results:
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Revenue 9,808,274 11,945,313 B751.219 | 11,040841
Results from operating activities (941,7586) (2.003.5094) (1,185,073} | (2.150.560)
Met finance costs (1,860.672) (2,284 427T) (1,874,343} | (2.235.696)
Loss before income tax (2,819,299 (4,306,120) (3.076,287) | (4,404 355)
Loss for the year (2,900,609) (4,181,641) (3.076,287) | (4,247.819)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (2,8092,844) (3.300,229) (3.068,522) | (3,366,407
Retained earnings, end of year (6.810,500) (3.918.241) (1,232,146} | (4.163.624)

Directors and theirinterests

The Directors whao served during the year and their interast in the shares of the Company as recorded in the
Register of Members and/or as notified by the Directars for the purpose of Section 275 of the Companies
and Allied Matters Act and as disclosed in accordance with Saction 342 of that Companies and Allied
Matters Act is asfollows:
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For the year anded 31 December 2016

Ordinary Shares of 50k each as at
31 December 2016

Direct Interest: _ _ 2016 2015
M. Ciement Adekunle Olowokande (Chairman) 810,001 810,001
Mr. Bukola Oluseyi Onajide (Managing Director) 648,000 648,000
Ms Adeola Adenike Ade Djo . .
Alhaji Sanusi Ado Bayero [Retired on Dec 28, 2016] 24, 696 24 606

Dr Adewale Olawoyin, SAN -
Mr. Akin Ajayi -

Alhaji Al Safivanu Madugu, mni - -
Sir Sunday Nnamdi Nwosu 10,873 10,873
Indirect Interest:

Mr, Akin Ajayi (through Lusano Investments Limited) 80,000 50,000
Ms Adeola Adenike Ade Djo (through Classic Motors) 97,200,000 97,200,000

Directors' interest in contracts

In accordance with Section 277 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, none of the directors
has notified the Company of any declarable interests in contracts with the Company except as disclosed in
Mate 25{b).

Re-election of Directors

In accordance with Section 269 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 1980, Alhaji Al Safivanu
Madugu, mni and Sir Sunday Nnamdi Nwosu will retire by rotation at the next Annual General Meeting.
Being eligible Alhaji Al Satiyanu Madugu, mni and Sir Sunday Mnamdi Mwosu will offer themsalves for re-
election,

Appointment of new Directors

Cin 10 April 2017, the Board of Directors approved the appointment of Mrs. Aderemi O, Akinsete-Chidi as
an Alternate Director to Ms, Adeola Adenike Ade-Ojo and Mrs. Folasade Oluwatoyin Ogunde was
appointed as Non-Executive Director, their appointment became effective immediately,

Meetings of Directors
The table below shows the frequency of meetings of the Board of Directors. Board Committees, and
members' attendance at these meetings, during theyearended 31 December 2016,

Business Financial Executive

Strategy Controls, Selection

and Re- Systems and

Board of Audit | Engineering and Risks Remuneration

~ Directors Committee Committee Committee  Commitiee
Number of Meetings held

in the year 8 6 1 2 1
M. C.A Olowokande 7 M MLA M I
Mr. B.O. Onajide 8 /A 1 2 N/&
Alhaji 5, Ado Bayero IZI o A P LA e
Ms. AA Ade Ojo 4 A& MAA 1 MNAE
Dr, Adewale Clawoyin, SAN ! 5 1 2 1
Mr. Akin Ajayi B B 1 g 1
Alhaji A, 5 Madugu, mni g 4 1 /A 1
SirSN, Mwosu & M 1 2 1

MN/A - Mat apphcable as the director 1s not a member of the committee
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For the year ended 31 Decernber POTE

Dates of meetings

Beneficial ownership
Accarding to the Register of Members as at 31 December 2016, the following shareholders held more than
5% of theissued share capital of the Company,.

Number of Ordinary Shares of 50k each

2016 2016 2015 2015
% ' %
Mikeade Investment Limited 339,931,724 2880 339,931,724 28.90
Classic Motors Limited 97,200,000 B.26 97,200,000 B.26
Other Individual and Institution| 739,221,971 62,84 739221971 | G284
| l!-‘l?ﬂﬂ-ﬁ. 100.00 1 1,176,353,695 100.00

The analysis of distribution of shares of the Company as at 31 December 2016 was as follows:

Number of % of Number of

Shareholding between: Shareholders Shareholders Shares % of Shares
1-100 608 1.4 33.343 0.00
101-500 2,697 £.24 798.047 Q.07
5011000 7,750 17.94 7,027,281 0.60
1001-2600 11,002 25465 18,262,032 1.64
2,501-5,000 6,721 1655 22,866,010 1.84
5,001-7,500 2,335 5.40 14,299,789 1.22
T,501-10,000 6,138 14.21 48 553,694 413
10,001-100,000 5,253 12.16 136,813,163 11.63
100,001-1,000.000 632 1.46 161,594,060 13.74
Above 1.000.000 4 017 765105270 65.04
43,210 100 1,176,353,695 100
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Donations
The Group denated N4,346.008 (2015: N750.000) to the following charitable institutions during the year:
Migeria Armed Forces Resettlement Centra - N4,346,000

In accordance with Section 38(2) of CAMA, the Group did not make any donation or gift to any political
party, political association or forany political purpose in the course of the year under review,

Subsequentevents

There were no significant subsequent events which could have had a matenial effect onthe Group's and the
Company's financial pesition as at 31 December 2016 that have not been adequately provided for or
disclosad inthese financial statements.

Distributors
There are no major distributors appointed todistribute the Company's products.

Suppliers
The Company's significant suppliers are Toyota Nigeria Limited, Ford Motors Company, Atlas Copoo
Compresscr International NV and Atlas Copeo Construction and Mining AB, Sweden.

Acquisition of Company's own shares
The Company has no beneficial interest inany of its own shares and all shares are held as provided for in
the Company's Articles of Association.

Share Capital history
The changes to the Company's share capital since incorporation are summarised below:

Authorised Share Capital Issued and Fully Paid Up

Year Increase  Cumulative Increase Cumulative Consideration
‘000 ‘000 N'000 MN'000

1957 - 200 200 200 Cash

Increase in

authornsed

1963 200 400 - 200 share capital
1964 - 400 200 400 Bonus

Increase in

authortsed
1972 1.600 2,000 - 400 share capital
1973 - 2,000 800 1,200 Bonus
1974 - 2,000 800 2,000 Cash
1975 4,000 6,000 2,000 4,000 Bonus
1976 4,000 10,000 6,000 10,000 Bonus
1977 10.000 20,000 5,000 15,000 Bonus
1980 - 20,000 5.000 20,000 Bonus
1981 10,000 30,000 5,000 25,000 Bonus
1992 30,000 5.000 30,000 Bonus

Increasa in

authorised
1993 20,000 50,000 30,000 share capital
1997 20,000 100,000 30,000 60,000 Rights Issus
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Authorised Share Capital Issued and Fully Paid Up

Year Increase  Cumulative Increase  Cumulative Consideration
‘000 ‘000 N'000 N'000
2003 . 100,000 15,000 75,000 Bonus
2004 200,000 300,000 18,750 93,780 Bonus
2004 : 300,000 62 500 156,250 Rights Issue
2004 : 400,000 20,285 181,535 Public Offer
2007 < 300, 000 45 384 220919 Bonus
20038 * 300,000 56,730 283,650 Bonus
2009 = 300,000 56,730 240,380 Bonus
2010 300,000 600,000 68.076 408,426 Bonus
2011 1,400,000 2,000,000 B1.691 490,147 Bonus
2012 - 2,060,000 as8,029 588177 Bonus

Increase in
authorised

2014 1,250,000 3,250,000 - 5EBBATT share capital

Employment and employees

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employment of physically challenged persons

The Group has no physically challenged persons in its employment. However, applications for
employment by physically challenged persons are always fully considered bearing in mind the
respective aptitudes and abilities of the applicants concerned. In the event of members of staft
becoming physically challenged, every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Group
continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the Group that the training,
career development and promotion of physically challenged perscns should, as far as possible, be
identical with that of other employees.

Health, safety and welfare at work

The Group invests its resources to ensure that the hygiene of its premises is of the highest standard. To
this end, the Group has various forms of insurance policies. including company personal accident
insurance to adequately secure and protect its employees.

Employes involvement and training

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has a practice of
keeping them informed on matters affecting therm as employees and on the various factors affecting
the performance of the Group. The Group has in-house training facilities complemented when and
where necessary with additional facilities from educational institutions tor the training ot its
employees,

Property, plant and equipment
Information relating to changes i property, plant and equipmant is disclosed in MNote 12 to the financial
staterments.
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Audit committee
Pursuant to section 359(3) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP 20 LFMN 2004, the Company has
an Audit Committee comprising of three directors andthree shareholders namely:

Mr. Akin Ajayi (Director)

Mr. Kenneth Mnabike Mwosu (Shareholders’ Representative)
Mr. Samuel Sunday Adebayo (Shareholders’ Representative)
Alhaji Ali Safivanu Madugu (Director)

Dr. Adewale Olawaoyin (Director)

Mr. Adeniyi Araunsi Adebisi (Shareholders’ Representative)

The function of the Audit Committee are laid down in Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters
Act, CAP-C20. LFN 2004,

Corporate governance

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance of the Group. The Directors are responsible for
keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial
status of the company and ensures that the financial statements comply with the Companies and Allied
Mattars Act, CAP C20. LFN 2004, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group by
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

During the year under review, the Group was managed by a Board of eight Directors consisting of seven

non-Executive Directors which include the Chairman, and one Executive Director. The Board of Directors
ensured that the Group's objectives were implemented through the committees constituted as below:

Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance
During the year. the Company complied with the 2011 Code of Corporate Governance for Public
Companiesissued by the Securities & Exchange Commission.
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Securities Trading Policy

The Board has a Securities Trading Policy which is applicable to all employees, directors, audit committes
members and connected employeas of auditors, consultants and contractors of the company and its
subsidiaries. The terms of the policy are na less exacting than the standard set in the Listing Rules of The
Migerian Stock Exchange.

Independent Auditor
Messrs. KPMG Professional Services. having satistied the relevant corporate governance rules on the:r
tenure in office have indicated their willingness to continue in office as auditor to the Company.

In accordance with section 357(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, CAP C20 Laws of the
Federation of Nigeria, 2004 therefore, the auditor will be re-appointed at the nextannual general mesting of
the Company without any resalution being passed.

BY ORDER OF THEEOARD

wu@-i-q
Clukayode Adeoluwa
(FRC/2013/NBA/ODOOOR02108)
Olukayode Adeoluwa & Co.
Company Secratary

18, Fatai Atere Way, Matori
Lagos, Migeria

10April 2017,
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The directors accept responsibility for the preparation of the annual financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards {(IFRS)and in the manner
required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act of MNigeria and the Financial Reporting Council of
MNigeria Act. 2011,

Thedirectors further accept responsibility for maintaining adequate accounting records as reguired by the
Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria and for such internal control as the directors determine.is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial staterments that are free from material misstatermen
whether due to fraud or error,

Thedirectars have made an assessment of the Cormpany's ability to continue as a going concern and have
no reason to believe the Company will not remain a golng concern in the year ahead,

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS BY:

< o
-5@—“ AN /fb'u_».a--g.d\._
Mr. Clement OlgWokande (Chairiman) Mr. Oluseyi Onajide
FRC/201 3/ICAN/QDO00001875 FRC/2013/ICAN/OOCO00021594
10 April 2017, 10 April 2017
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For the year ended 31 Decernber POTE

In compliance with the statutory provisions of Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act
1990, the Rules of the Migerian Stock Exchange and the Code of Corporate Governance issued by the
Securities & Exchange Commission, the Members of the Audit Committee of R.T. Briscoe (Migeria) PLC
hereby report as follows:

Wi

Wi,

The committee met in exercise of its statutory functions under Section 359(6) of the Companies
and Allied Matters Act of 1990 and we received the co-operation of the Management and Staff in
the exercise of these responsibilities.

We exercised due oversight over Management processes towards ensuring that the accounting
and reporting policies of the Company are in accordance with legal requirements and ethical
practices.

‘We' deliberated with the External Auditors and received confirmation that all necessary co-
operation was received from Management and that they have issued a fairand objective report.

We alsa confirm that the Company has an adequately resourced independent internal audit unit
which discharges its responsibilities effectively.

We: arer satisfied from our deliberations and reports presented at meetings that Management is
pursuing the Company's goals and ohjectives.

In the course of the financial year, R.T. Briscog (Migeria) PLC recorded significant business
transactions with Toyata Nigeria Limited which is its main supplier of Toyota vehicles and the socle
authorized distributor of Tovota vehicles In Migeria by the manufacturers, the Toyota Motor
Corporation of Japan. R.T. Briscoe has a de tacto common shareholder with Toyota Migera Limited
wha has controlling interests in R.T. Briscoe and theretore an interested person.

We are satistied that the methods or procedures for determining transaction prices between R.T.
Briscoe (Migeria) PLC and Toyota Nigeria Limited have not changed since the approval granted by
shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting on December 29, 2016; and the methods or
procedures are sufficient to ensure that the transactions are carried out on normal commercial
terms and are not prejudicial te the Interests of the company and its minarity sharehaolders.

Dated this 10th day of April 2017

Mr. Akin Ajayi
FRC/Z013/MULTI/00000004485
Chairman

Members:

M. Akin Ajayi

Mr, Benneth Mnablke Mwosu
Mr. Samuel Sunday Adebayo
Mr. Adeniyi Araunsi Adebisi

Dr, Adewale Olawaoyin, 54N
Alhaji All Safivanu Madugu, mni
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KPMG Professional Services Telephone 234 (1) 271 8955
KEPSAG Tower 234 (1) 271 8599
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TotheSharenolders of RLT. Briscoe (MNigeria) PLC
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of R.T. Briscoe (Migeria) PLC (*the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, “the group”), which comprise the consolidated and separate statement of financial
position as at 31 December, 2016, the consolidated and separate statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated and separate statement of changes In eguity, consolidated and separate statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, asummary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set
oul on pages 26 1o 76

In ouropimaon, except for the pessible effects on the corresponding figures for the yearended 31 December 206 of the
matter described In the Basis for Qualified Opinion section in our report, the accompanying consolidated and
separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated and separate financial position of the
Company and its subsidianes as al 31 December, 2016, and of its consolidated and separate financial performance
and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financia
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of
the Federation of Migaria, 2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011,

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Included in impairment loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 was an amount of N1.1billlon which was written off
to the prafit or loss account for the year then ended. We were unable to obtain sufficient approprate audit evidence
regarding the nature and accounting for the underhying transaction that related to the amount because managemeant
was unabie to provide satisfactory explanations and relevant supporting documents. Our audit opinion on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 was modified accordingly, Qur opinion on the current
period’s financial staterments is also modified because of the possible effect of this matter on the comparability of the
current perod's figures and the corresponding figures,

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated and separate
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consclidated and separate financial
statements in Migaria and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the |[ESBEA Code. We baligve that the audit evidence we have obtained is suthcient and appropriate to provide a
basis for cur qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainly Related to Going Concern

Vithout further qualitying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 29{a) and Note 32 {o the financial statements, Note
20{a) describes the uncertainty refated to the outcome of the lawsuit filed against the Company by Diamond Bank Plc,
while Note 32 indicates that the Company incurred a loss of N3 billlon during the year ended 31 December 2016 and,
as of that date, the Company's current liabilities exceeded Its current assets by N7.9 billion, while the total Habilities of
the Company exceeded total assets by N34 hillion. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Mote 32,
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt about the Cormpany's ability to continue as a
going concern




Key Audit Matters
Fey audit matters are those matters that, In cur professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated and separate financial staterments of the current period. These malters were addressed in the context ol
our audit of the consclidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therecn, and
we o not provide a separate opinion on these matters, [0 addition to the matter described inthe material uncertanty
related to going concern section, we have determined the matters balow to be Key Audit Matters to be communicated
In our report

a.

Revenue Recognition

Referto Significant accounting policies (Note 3(k)) and Revenue (Mote ) on pages 41 and 48 respectively of the

financial statements.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenueisan important measure
and it impacts mostofthe key
performance Indicatorsonwhich
the Company and its directors are
assessed, Mssignificance makes
revenue a matter of focus in our
audit.

Impairment of trade receivables

We performed the following procedures among others:

We evaluated the design, implementation and the-operating
effectiveness of manual internal controls over the approval of
goods soid and services renderad,

For sale of vehicles and services rendered to customers during
the year, we compared, on a sample basis, postings into the
revenue ledaer to appropriate basis such as delivery wayhills
acknowledged by customers

We assessed the accuracy of a sample of manual |ournal entries
relating to revenue by checxing them to supporting
documentation, such as approved credit notes to customers
with respect to sales returns

We scanned the postings in sales ledger subseguent to year end
to understand tha basis of any significant/unusual credit notes.

We performed cut-off procedures by checking that revenue
transactions ocourring prior to, and immediately after the year
end date were recegnized in the correct period.

Referto Significant accounting policies (Mote 3ih)) and Trade and other receivables (Note 18) on pages 38 and 59

respectively of the financlal statements

The key audit matter

Management performs an assessment
of the recoverability of trade receivables
Inardertodetermine impalrment
allowance, Inmaking this assessment
managament makes significant
judgrments based on historical loss
experience, The stgniticant judagment
involved inestimating the recoverability
of trade receivable makes impairment
allowance anarea of significance in our
audit.

| How the matter was addressed in our audit
We performed the following procedures among others:

We selacted a sample of recelvable balances with risk factors
such as magnitude and the current level of overdue balances;
and re-performed the impairment allowance,

We challenged the assumptions applied in determining the
impairment allowance by comparing the assumptions to history
of customer perfiormance and our expectations based on
knowledge of the Company and its Industry.

We also considered the cash received from customers
subsequent to year end in evaluating the Impairment allowance
recorded In the books.

We compared the outcome of our proceduraes with the
impairment amount recorded by the Company.




Otherinformation

The Directors are responsible for the other information which comprises the BT Briscog's Corporate Profile, Board of
Directors, Corporate Infoarmation, Results at a glance, Notice of meeting, Direclors' Report, Statement of Directors'
responsibilities in relation to the Financial Statements. Shareholders' information, Report of the Audit Committes and
Uther national disclosures, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditors report  (but does not include the
consolidated and separate inancial statements and our audit report thereon). It also includes financial and non-
tinanclal information such as the Chairman's Statement, shareholders' information, amongst others, which are
expecied to be made avallableto us after that date ("the outstanding reports”),

Ouropinion on the consolidated and separate financial staternents dees not cover the other information and we donot
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion therson,

In connection with our audit of the censolidated and separate financial staterments, our responsibility is Lo read the
other information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed an the other inforrmation that we have obtained prior to
the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is 2 material misstaternent of this other information, we are
required to report that tact, We have nothing to report In this regard

When wa read the outstanding reparts, ifwea conclude that there is a material misstalemant therein, we are required to
commumcate the matterto the Board of Directors and Audit Committes

Responsibilities of the Direclors for the Consolidated and separate Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that give a true
and fair view inaccordance with IFRSs and inthe manner required by the Companies and &llied Matters Act, Cap C.20,
Laws of the Fedaration of Migeria, 2004, the Financial Reporting Council of Migeria Act, 2011, and for such internal
contral as the directors determine s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
rnaterial misstatement, whether dueto fraud orerror

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the direciors are responsible for assessing the
Group and Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors elther intend to liguidate the Group and
Cormpany orto cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and separate Financial Statements

Clurobjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consalidated and separate financial statements
a5 a whole gre free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that
Includas our opinion, Reasonable assurance is & high level of assurance, but Is notl a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1545 will always detect a materiai misstaterment when it exists, Misstaterments can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected toinfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thase financ:al statements,

Az part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also

. |dentify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the consolidated and separate financial statemeants,
whether due to fraud orerror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nsks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sutficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud |s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve callusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectveness of the
Group and Company's internal cantrol.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosuras made by the directors.




T Conclude on the appropnateness of directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based an the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group and Company's abifity to continue as a going concern. Il we conclude that a
material uncartainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the refated disclosures in
the consolidated and separate financial statements or, it such disclosures are inadequate, to modity our opinion,
Clur canclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
eventsor conditions may cause the Group and Company to cease to continue as a geing concem,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statemeants,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate tinancial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation,

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group lo exprass an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinon.

We communicate with Board of Directors and Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and tirming of the auvdit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control thal we
identify during our audit.

We also provide Board of Directors and Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding indepandence, and o communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reascnably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

From the matters communicated with Board of Directors and Audit Committes, we determine those matters that were
of most significancein the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and are
therefors the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determing thal a matter shou ld not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements
Compliance with the requirements of Schedule 6 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act. Cap C.20, Laws of the
Federation of Migerna, 2004

In our opinian, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from our examination of
those books and the Company's staterment of financial position and staterment of profit or loss and other
comprehensive incomea are in agreement with the books of account.

Signed:

GEdw u,ln

i
Goodluck C. Obi, FCA

FRC 201 2/CANDODODO00442
For: KPMG Protessional Services
Chartered Accountants

11 May 2017

Lagos; Migena




Az at 31 Decornber
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Consolidated and separate statements of finaricial position

Group _ Company

Notes 2016 2015 2016 2015
Non-current assets N '000 N '000 N ‘000 N ‘000
Property, plant and equipment 12 4,506,553 4,780,037 4,581,635 4,767,141
Intangible assets 13 3,853 27,966 2784 26,185
Goodwill 14 33,999 33,594 - -
Cther receivables 18 246,114 115,857 246,114 115,857
Prepayments 19 4 bhh 14,258 4555 | 14,250
Investment in subsidiaries 16 | = | | 183,576) | 169,475
Total non-current assets 4,885,174 4,972,118 { 5,091,917
Current assets
Inventories 17 1,814,808 h,624 695 1.349 141 | 4 602,979
Trade and other recelvables 18 1,268,629 2,659,279 1,313,960 | 2.125,288
Cther investments 15 140,000 140,000 140,000 | 140,000
Frepaymenis 9 63,243 B0, 468 44 366 | 54,138
Cash and bank balances 20 [ 7320481 | 482,894 | | 308404 | 430,249
Total current assets 4,018,829 = 8,967,337 | 3,245961 = 7,952,654
Total assets 8,904,003 13,939,455 3,!51,125 | 13,044,571
Equity
Share caplital 26{a) 588,177 SBE1TT GEB 177 588,177
Share premium 26(b) 400 862 405,862 409 862 | 409 862
Revaluation reserve 26(c) 2,854 778 2,864,778 2,864,778 2.864, 778
Fetained earnings [ 16:810,500) | | (3.918.241) | (1. 232,146)}| | (4,163.624)
Equity attributable to
owners of the Company (2,947,683) (55,424) | (3,369,329) (300,807)
Mon-controlling interests . = | 14,686 | | -l | -
Total equity ((2,947,683) = (40,738)  (3,369,329)  (300,807)
Liabilities
Employee benefits 21 197462 123,827 137,452 123,827
Loans and borrowings 24 300,566 435,689 300,566 | 435,689
Deterred tax liahilities b 21430 | 1,463 | | = |
Non-current liabilities 440,161 = 560,979 = 438,018 559,516
Current tax liabilities 106d) 126,358 214,664 46,717 162,024
Trade and other payables 23 1,386 427 2 466,387 1,248,979 1,873,023
Bank overdrafts 20 5,744,149 4 782,160 h, 744 149 4. 744 B22
Loans and borrowings P4 4,038,056 5,904,846 4,038,056 | 5,204,046
Dividend payable 27 | 116535 | 81,047 | | 116,5368] | 81,047
Current liabilities 11,411,525 13,419,214 11,195436 | 12,785,862
Total liabilities | 11,851,686 13,980,193 11,633,454 13,345,378
Total equity and liabilities . 8,904,003 13,939,455 8,264,125 13,044,571

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 10 April, 2017 and signed on its behalf by
the directors listed below:
—""—d(— “‘h‘_;ﬁ’ v Mr Clement Olowokande (Chairman) FRC/2013/1CANCO000001875
T e YV e

AUy

Additionally certified by
-

Mr. Dluseyi Onajide (Managing Directar) FRC/2013/ICAN/00000002 194

Mr. Sequn Adebayo (Chief Financial Officer) FRC/201 3/1CAN/QO000002198

L
F
The notes on pages 31 to 76 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Revenue
Cost of Sales
Gross profit

Other Income

Other Expenses

Impairment loss

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Results from operating activities

;:||'-ar|r;u ncome

Finance costs

Net finance costs

Loss before minimum tax
Minimum tax

Loss before income tax

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Notes

B
{d)

Tia)
IX{s)]
Tic)
7{d)
Tid)

10¢d)
Hia)

10(a)

Cther comprehensive income, net of tax;

Iterns that will never be reclassified to
profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined

benefit liability

Revaluation of property plant

and equipment _ o
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss for

the year

Loss attributable to:
Crwriers of the Company
Mon-controlling interests

Total comprehensive loss
attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Mon-controlling interests

Earnings per share:
Basic and diluted loss per share (koba)

21(b)

12(c)

11
|

2016

8,808,274

| (8,248.494)

1,559,780
345,946

(1.134.177)
(186,534)

1 1.626.771) |

(941,756)

196,829
(2,057.501)

(1,860,672)

(2,802,428)
(16.871)

(2,819,299)
(81.310) | |

(2,900,609)

I{j!,!!E.IM]___

(2,900.609)

(2.900.609)

(2,892,544)

|(2.892.844)

(247)

Gansaitdmed cmd Separﬂfe Statements
of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

For the year ented 31 December DOTE

Group Company
2015 2016 2015
N '000 | N '000 N ‘000
11,945 313 B.751.218! | 11,040, 841
(10,820,855) | | (1,564.654) {10,181,138)
1,124,458 1,186,565 859,703
220,767 341,980 209,635
{215,920) - (215,920)
(1,286,258} | [MA34,177) | (1,286,258)
(ZH2 456) {184 589) (260,957)
| £1,664.188) | | (1,384.858) | (1,456.666)
(2,003,594) (1,185,073) (2,150,560)
67,055 183,834 103,905
| (2,351,462} | | (2,068,177) | (2.339,601)
.[21384#2?]'. _'[‘l 874 343]'_ .{2.235.5551
(4,288,021) (3,059,416) (4,386,256)
| (18,099 | (6871} | (18,099
(4,306,120) (3,076,287) (4,404,355)
124,479 166,636
(4,181,641) |(3,076,287) (4,247,819)
23,801 7,165 23,801
8rblT) b = 861611
881,412 7,765 881,412
(3,300,229) I{E.EEB.EEE}_ 1 (3,366,407)
(4,183,008) | | (3076287} | (4.247.819)
| (4,181,641)| |(3.076.281)| | (4.247819)
(3.301,594) | | (F068.522) | (3.366.407)

1,365 |
(3,300.229)

(355)

(3.068,522) |

(262)

(3,366,407

(367}

*Total other comprehensive income has been recognised at gross because the criteria for recognition
of the corresponding deferrad tax asset was not met (Note 22a).

The notes on pages 31 te 76 form an integral part of these financial statements.

BRISCOE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year anded 31 December 2016

Group Attributable to equity holders of the Group
MNon-
Share Share Revaluation Retained controlling Total
_capital _premium reserve  eamnings Total  interest equity

N 000 M ‘000 M 000 N ‘000 M ‘000 M ‘000 N ‘000
Balance as at
1 January 2015 588,177 409,882 2,007,167 240,964 3,246,170 10,881 3,257,051
Lass lar the vear : - - (4 183.008)  (4.1B3.006) 1,365 (4181641
Cther comprehensive income 857,811 23,80 881,412 BA1.412
Total comprehensive income
far the year - - 857,611 (4,159,205) (3,301,594) 1,365 (3,300,229)
Transactions with owners,
recorded directly in equity
Dilution in group haldings
(Note 16(0)) . - 2.440 2.440)

Balance at 31 December 2015 588177 409,862 2,864,778 (3,918,241) (55,424) 14,686 (40,738)

Balance asat  January 2016 588,177 409,862 2864778 (3918241)  (55424) 14686  (40,730)
Total comprehansive income
for the year

Lass for the yeal - . - (20006000 (2 90060G) - [2,900,609)
Cther comprehensive income . 1,765 1165 T, 155
Total comprehensive loss

for the year = - - (2,892,844) (2,892,844) - (2,892,844)

Transactions with owners,

recorded directly in eqguity

E.h-ll'.[]{-.:—, in ownership nteras)

Acquisition of NMCI withaut

a change in control (Note 16c) 585 585  (14686) _ (14,101)

Balance at 31 December 2016 _ 588,177 409,862 2,864,776 (6,810,500) (2947,683) - (2947,683)

The notes on pages 31 to 76 form an integral part of thesa financial statements.
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Company

Balance as at 1 January 2015 588,177

Lass for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Balance at 31 December 2015 588,177

Statement aF Changes in Equity

Balance as at 1 January 2016 588,177

Loss for the vear

Cther comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss

for the year

The notes on pages 31 to 76 form an integral part of these financial statements.

BRISCOE

he year ended 31 Decernber POTE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share Share Revaluation  Retained Total
capital premium reserve earnings equity
N '000 N '000 N ‘000 N '000 N '000
409,862 2,007,167 60,394 3,065,600

(4.247.819) (4.247,819)

857,611 23.801 881,412

- 857,611  (4,224,018) (3,366,407)

409,862 2,864,778  (4,163,624)  (300,807)
ML R SR b R

: - (3.076287) (3.076,287)

- 1.165 1,765

: = - [(3,068,522)  (3,068,522)
SBBITT 409862 2864778  (1.202,146) (3,369,329)
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For the year anded 31 December 2016

__ Group __Company _
Notes 2016 2015 2016 2015
N 000 N ‘000 N 000 N 000

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year (2,200,609) (4,181,641} {3,076.287) (4,247,815
Adjustments far:

Interest on commercial papers

& irmport Tacility 8 1210641 1,178,432 121,397 1,167,671
Finance incoeme 8 (196, 829) (B7.035) {183,834} {103.908)
Income tax expensa 10 81,310 {124 479 . {156,536)
Mirirmium kax 16,811 18,009 16,871 16,000
Employes henetit plan charge b 38,623 48,871 38.623 48,871
Depreciation of Property, plant & equipment 12 260077 438,663 251,180 432,773
Amortisation of Intangible assets 13 24013 1.756 2,001 44
Gain on sale of Property, plant & equipment Sa) | (3514} | 2.338)) | {13;684)) | (1.543)
| (1,479.817) (2,687,480) (1,732,908) (2,841,845
Changes in:
Other receivables (130,267) 30,811 (130,257) 35,911
Inventories 3,808,787 2,930,378 3,253 838 25234974
Irade and other receivables®** 1:392.793 2452 604 1414617 2 98P R08
Prepayments 6,930 30,736 19,476 38,100
Trade and other payables** [ (835828} | 600495, | (378.,003) | 579,993
Cash generated from operating activities 2,763,507 3,384,644 2,445,763 3,322,661
Employes benafits paid (17;233) (43 503} {(17.233) (43 503)
Income taxas paid (152 462) (43,703 {134,080} -
VAT paid* [ (244041} | (73.159)) | (244.041) @ {44.914)
MNet Cash generated from operating activities 2,349,1M 3,224,279 2,050,409 3,234,944
Cash flows from investing activities
Finance income received 8 196,850 67,035 183,834 103,505
Proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment 17 882 12,462 17,662 837
Acquisition of intangible assets 13 - (2.145) - (2,146)
Acguisition of proparty, plant and equipment®*® . {B0.561) . (61.182) | {E_‘B,ﬁd-]} (49 869)
Net cash used in investing activities . 134450 26,169 131,839 57,827
Cash fiows from financing activities
Interest on loans capitalized g8 | (1210641 (1,179,432 (1,211.317) 11,167.571)
Acguisition of non.controlling interests 16ic) (14.101) .
Met decrease in borrowings during the year | 12,002,013) {3.525,585) 2 O02,013) (3,525.585)
Net cash used in financing activities ISIE_?'.G.TEEI H..'Tﬁﬁ.ﬂﬂ}: | (3,213,330) (4,693,156)
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents (742,834) {1,454 563) (1,031,082} 11,400,385}
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January [A260066) | (2814697 | M3MMETI)| | (2914.188)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 20 Ir[‘.i.lhi.il‘.lﬂ}_ . (uﬁs.z'&a}'l | (5,345,655)  (4,314,573)

*  Value Added Tax (VAT) paid shown separately above has been adjusted for In deriving the change in trade and
other payahles,

*= Apguisition of property, plant and sguipmeant in prior year (2078) excludes a sum of N73.5million of addition to
land which does not inwolve cash movement during the year, and is adjusted for in dernving the change in
trade and other payables above

“** Withholding tax utilized during the year has been adjusted for in deriving the change in trade and other
recievables,

The notes on pages 31 to 76 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Reporting entity

R.T. Briscoe (Migeria) PLC (the 'Company') is domigiled in Nigeria. The Company was incorporated in
Nigeria as a limited liability company on 9 March 1957 and became a public limited liability company in
1973, The Company's registered office is at 18, Fatai Atere Way, Mataori, Oshadi, Lagos State. This
financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the Group' and
individually 'Group companies’). The Group is primarily engaged in the sales and servicing of Toyota
and Ford motorvehicles, technical equipment, including forklifts. industrial compressors, mining and
drilling equipment and generating sets, facility management, property development and leasing of
property.

Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance
These consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Fimancial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in the manner required by the Companies
and Allied Matters Act CapC20, laws of the federation of Migeria, 2004 and the Financial Reporting
Ceouncil (FRC) of Nigeria Act, 2001, They were authorised for issue by the Board of Directers on 10
April 2017,

(b) Basis of measurement
The consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for defined benefit liability measured at the present value of the defined benefit
obligation, inventories measured at the lower of cost-and net realisable value property plant and
eguipment (land and building) measured at fair value as described in note 4 to the financial
staternents. Financial assets and liabilities are measured initially at fair value/less transaction cost
and subseguently measured at amertised cost.

(c) Functional and presentation currency
These consclidated and separate financial statements have been presented in MNigerian Maira,
which is the Company's functional currency. All amounts have besn rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indicated.

(d) Use of judgments and estimates
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements. estimates and
assumptions that aftect the application of the Group's accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities., income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates, Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ocngoing basis. Revisions to
estimates ara recognised prospectively,

(i) Judgements
Information about judgements made In applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effects on the amounts recognisad in the consolidated financial statements is
included in the following notes:
Maote 16 - Consolidation; whether the group has de facto contral over an investee

MNote 6 — Revenue: whether the Group acts as an agent in the transaction rather than asa
principal

MNote 10 - Tax expense; whether the amount provided for prior year back-duty assessment is
adequate

BRISCOE




(ii)

Mote 22 - unrecognised of deferred tax assets: avallability of future taxable profit against which
carry forward tax losses can be used,

Mote 29 - Contingencies key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an ocutflow of
resources,

Mote 32-The Company'sability to continue as agoing concern,

Assumption and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a signiticant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 December 2016 is included in the
following notes:

Mote 7 — recognition of impalrment of receivables; assumptions about the likelihood and
magnitude of an cutflow of resources

Mote 14 -Goodwill impairment testing: key assumptions of underlying recoverable amounts.
Mote 21 —measurement of defined benefit obligation: Key actuarial assumptions.

{iii) Measurement of fairvalues

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Significant valuation issues
are reported to the Group's Board of Directors and Audit Committee. The Board has
established a process in respect to the measurement of fair values especially level 3 fairvalues
where an independent valuation specialist is engaged who reports directly to the chief
finance officer,

When measuring the fairvalue of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data
as far as possible, Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows,

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities,

Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
tevel of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting penod during which the change has occurred,

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note
12 Property plant and equipment,

(e} Change in accounting estimate

During the year, the Company reviewed the estimated usetul lite of its leasehold land as unlimited
on the basis that it is reasonably certain that the Government will usually renew the lease upon
expiration and that the substance of the lease isthat the Company has ownership of the land, nota
right to use the land for a predefined pericd, This change in accounting estimate was applied
prospectively inaccordance with 1A5 8 -{Accounting Policy and Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Error} Further information an the impact of the change in accounting estimate is included in
Mote 3eliil and 12.
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3 Significant accounting policies
The Group has consistently applied the significant accounting policies set out below to all periods
presented in these financial statements,

{a) Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial staterments from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when
necessary toalign them with the pelicles adopted by the Group.
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that
there isnoevidence of impairment,

(i) Businesscombinations
The Group accounts for business cambinations using the acquisition method when contral is
transferred to the Group (see (a){ii) below). The consideration transferred in the acquisition is
generally measured at fairvalue, as are the identifiable net assets acquired, Any goodwill that
arises is tested annually for impairment {see (f} below). Any gain on a bargain purchase is
recognised in profit or loss immeadiately,

(il} Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group centrols an entity when it is
exposed to, or has rights to varable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial staterments from the date on which
control commences until the date on which control ceases. Separate disclosure is made for
nan-controlling interest.

(iii) Mon-controlling interests (NCI)
MNCHare measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets at the
date of acquisition. Changes inthe Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result ina loss of
centrol are accounted foras equity transactions,

(iv) Lossofcontrol
On the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any
nan-centrolling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary, Any
surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group
retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at
the date that control is lost.

(v} Transactionseliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated on consolidation

{b) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated and recorded in Maira at the actual exchange
rates as of the dates of the transaction, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are transiated Into naira at the exchange rate at the reporting date. MNon-manetary
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated inte Naira
at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non- monetary items that are measured
on historical cost in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the dates of the
transactions Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in profit or loss.
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(¢) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or eguity instrument of another entity. Once a Group entity becomes party to such a
contract, the financial instrurment is recognised eitheras a financial asset oras a financial llability,
The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets inte the loans and receivables categeory. The
Group classities non-derivative financial liabilities into the otherfinancial liabilities category

(1)

(i)

(iii)

Mon-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities - Recognition and derecognition
The Group initially recognises loans and receivables on the date they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised Initially on the trade date at which the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument,

The Group derecognisesa financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash Hows in a transaction
in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transterred, or it neither transfers nor refains substantially ail of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain contrel over the transferred asset, Any interest in such
derecognised financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a
separate asset or liabllity.

The Group derecognises a financial Hability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, orexpire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the staterment of
financial position when, and anly when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and seftle the liability
simultansously,

MNon-derivative financial assets-measurement
The Cempany's non-derivative financial assets are classified as lpans and receivables and
cash and cash equivalents

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
guoted in an active market. These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly
attributable: transaction costs, Subsequent o initial recognition, they are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Loans and receivables comprises trade
and ctherrecelvables.

Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand: cash balances with banks and call
deposits with ariginal maturities of three months or less, Bank overdrafts that are repayable an
demand and form an integral part of the Group/Company's cash management are included as
acomponent of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

MNon-derivative financial liabilities- measurement

MNan-derivative financial liabilities are inltially recognised at fair value less any directly
attributable transaction costs, Subsequentto initial recegnition, these liabilities are measured
at amartised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group has the following other financial liabllities: loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts
and trade and other payables. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management which areincluded as acompaonent of cash and
cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows. Cash and cash eguivalents are measured at
amortised cost,
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(d) Sharecapital

The Company has only oene class of shares, ordinary shares, Ordinary shares are classified as
share capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised
as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. Where the Group or any member of the Group
purchases the Group's share capital, the consideration paid is deducted from the shareholders'
equity and held in a separate ‘reserve for own shares' account until they are cancelled or disposed,
Whera such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration recelved is included in
shareholders' eguity.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity, When new shares are Issued, they are recorded In share
capital at their par value. The excess of the issue price over the par value is recorded in the share
premium reserve. The use of the share premium account is governed by 5.12003) of CAMA, All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. Holders of these shares
are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time.

Retained earnings; This represents the Company's accumulated earnings since its inception, less
any distributions to shareholders, and netof any prior period adjustments. A negative amount of
retained earnings is also known as deficlt oraccumulated deficit,

{e) Property, plantand equipment

(i) Recognitionand measurement
Iterns of property, plant and eguipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses except as indicated in note (iv) below. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets to aworking condition for theirintended use.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized
as part of that equipment,

It significant paris of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, thay
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plantand equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when the asset is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal, Any gains or losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property,
plant and eguipment, and are recognised net within other income in profit or loss,
Borrowing costs that are directly afiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
aqualitying asset are recognised as a part of the cost of that asset.

{ii) Subseguentexpenditure
Subsequent expenditure |s capitalised only if it Is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group, Ongoing repairs and mainienance are
expensedas incurred.

(iii} Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less
their estimated residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives, and is recognised In profit or loss, Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter ot the
lease term and their usetul lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term,
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{iv)

The estimated useful lives forthe current and comparative years are asfollows:

Leasehold land . Linlimited
Buildings - Lease penod
Plant & Machinery, Furniture & Fittings - 6.7 years

[.T Equipment - 3.3years
Motorvehicles - 4 years

Depreciation methods, usaful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial yearend
and adjusted if appropriate, with the effect of changes in estimate is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

During the year, the Company reviewed the estimated useful life of its leasehold land as
unlimited on the basis that it is reasonably certain that the various State Governors who are
the lessors of these properties. will usually renew the lease upon expiration and that the
substance of the lease iz that the Company has ownership of these lands, and not just a right
to use the lands for a predefined period. Consequently, the Company has discontinued
depreciation of leasehold [and.

Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated. The attributable cost of each asset is transferred
to the relevant asset category immediately the asset is available for use and depreciated
accordingly.

Rewvaluation of Property plant and equipment

With effect of 31 December 2014, the Group adopted the revaluation miodel for its land and
tbuilding asset category of its property plant and eguipment. After recognition, land and
building whase fair value can be measured reliably shall be carried at a revalued amount,
being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subseguent accumulated impairment losses, Revaluations shall be made
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ matenally fram
thatwhich would be determined using fairvalue at the end of the reporting period.

When an itern of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the carrying amount of that asset
15 adjusted to the revalued amount. At the date of the revaluation, the accumulated
depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.”

® |f an asset's carrving amount is Increased, the increase shall be recognised in other
comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity in "revaluation surplus’. Howewer,
the increase shall be recognised in profit or lossto the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss

e [f anasset's carrying amount |s decreased, the decrease shall be recognised in profit or
loss. However, the decrease shall be recognised in other comprehensive income to the
extent of any credit batance existing in the revaluation surpius in respect of that asset,
The effects of taxes on Income, if any, resulting from the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment are recognised and disclosed as appropriate,

(f) Intangible assets and goodwill

(i)

Recognition and measurement

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of an acquired entity at the date of the acquisition. Goodwill ansing on an acquisition of
a business 15 carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.,
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The excess of the purchase price over the carrying amount of non-controlling interest. when
the Group increases its interest in an existing subsidiary, is recognised in equity.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses an goodwill are not reversed,
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating
tothe entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured at
cost less accurmulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

(ii) Subseguentexpenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised anly when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset towhich it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit
orloss as incurred.

(iii) Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated
residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is
generally recognised in profit orloss. Goodwill is not amortised,
The Company's intangible assets with finite useful lives comprise acquired computer
software. The estimated useful livestorthe current and comparative years is Syears.
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted if appropriate.
An intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal or when the asset s permanantly
withdrawn from use and no future economic benetits are expected from the disposal,

{g) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories
includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs
and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. The basis of
costing isas follows:

Motor Vehicles - Purchase cost on a specific item identitication basis including transportation
andclearing cost

Spares and industrial equipment - Purchase cost on a weighted average basis including
transportation and clearing costs.

Property Units - Property acguired or being constructed for sale in the ordinary course of
business, rather than to be held for rental or capital appreciation, is held as property units, This
would normally comprise expenditure incurred in acquiring the properties, production or
comversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition and are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value,

(h) Impairment
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(i) MNon-derivative financial assets
Financial assets not classified as at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed at each
reporting date todetermine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
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(i)

Objective evidencethat financial assets are impaired includes:

« default ordelinguency by a debtor;

. restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
ctherwise;

. indicationsthat a debtororissuer will enter bankruptoy;

. adverse changes inthe payment status of borrowers or issuers;

» thedisappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties: or

»  pbservable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the expected cash
flows fromagroupcffinancial assets.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an individual assetand a
collective level. &ll individually significant assets are individually assessed for impairment.
Those found not to be impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has
beenincurred but not yet individually identified. Assets that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment. Collective assessment is carried out by grouping
together assets with similar risk charactenstics,

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical information on the timing of
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic
and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than
suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset's carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's criginal efective
interast rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account.
When the Group considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the
relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment |oss subsequently decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event ccourring after the impairment was
recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profitor loss.

Mon-financial assets

At each reparting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its nonfinancial assets
{ather than inventaries and deferred tax assets) to determine whether thereis any indication of
impairment. It any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount 15 estimated.
Goodwill istested annually for impairment,

For impairment testing, assets are grouped fogether into the smallest group of assets that
generatescash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or CGUs: Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or
groups of CEUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, Value in use |5 based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time valueof moneyand the nisks specific to the asset or CGLU,

&n impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverableamount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit ar loss. They are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying
amountsof the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.
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Animpairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, animpairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment losshad been recognised.

(i) Employee benefits
{iy Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benetit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensedas the related service s provided, A liability 15 recogrused forthe amount expected to
be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group hasa present legal or
constructive cbligationto pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employes,
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(i) Postemployment benefits
{a) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan (pension fund) under
which the Group/Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group
{Company has no legal or constructive abligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employes
service in the current and prior periods.
In line with the provisions of the Pension Reform Act 2014, the Group has instituted a
defined contribution pension scheme for its permanent staff. Staff contributions to the
scheme are funded through payroll deductions while the Group/Company's contribution
i5 recognised in profit ar loss as employee benefit expense in the periods during which
servicesare rendered by employees.
Employees contribute B% of their Basic salary, Transport and Housing Allowances to the
Fund on a monthly basis. The Group's contribution is 10% of each employee's Basic
salary, Transport & Housing Allowances for all employees.

(b) Defined benefit plan
A defined benetfit plan is a postemployment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior pericds,
discounting that amount.
The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on Federal Government bonds, that
have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group's obligations and that are
denominated inthe currency (Maira) in which the benefits are expected to be paid,
The calculation of the defined benefit cbligations is performed annually by & qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method, When the calculation results in a
potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benetits,
consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding reguirements,

Remeasurements of the net defined benetit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and

losses, the returm on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling
(it any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in QCI.
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The Group determines the net interest expense on the net defined banefit liability for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning ofthe annual pericd to the then-net defined benefit lability, taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the pericd as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses ralated to
defined benefit plans are recognised in profitor loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed orwhen a plan is curtailed, the resulting change
in benefit that relates {o past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of
a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

(iii) Long Service Award

The Group's instituted Long Service Awards scheme instituted for all permanent employess.
The Group's chligations in respect of these schemes are the amount of future bengfits that
employees have earned in return fortheirservice inthe current and prior periods. The benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date
on Federal Government of Migeria issued bonds that have maturity dates approximating the
term of the Company's obligation. The calculation is performed using the Projected Unit Credit
method. Anyactuarial gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss.

(j) Provisions and Contingent liabilities
Provisions
A provision is recognisad if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal orconstructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of ecanomic benefits will
be required o settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments otthe time value of money and
the risks specifictothe liability. The unwinding ot thediscount isrecognised asfinance cost,

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that anses from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed anly by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the company, or a present abligation that arises from past events but is
not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecanormic
benefits will be required to settle the abligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are only disclosed and not recognized as liabilities in the statement of
financial position,

If the likelihood of an outflow of resources is remote, the possible abligation Is neither a provision
noracontingent liability and no disclosureds made.

(k) Revenue

Revenue comprises of the fair value of consideration received or receivable tor the goods and

services provided, net of value-added tax, rebates and discounts and after elimination of sales

within the group.

i Saleofgoods
Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities |s measured at the fairvalue
of the consideration received or receivable, net of value added tax, sales returns, trade
discounts andvolume rebateas.
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Revenue is recognised when parsuasive evidence exists that the significant risks and rewards
ot ownership have been transterred to the buyer, the sales price is agreed or determinable,
recovery of the consideration is probable and there is no continuing management involvement
with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably,

If it is probable that discount will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then
the discount is recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales are recognised.

Transter of significant risk and rewards of cwnership is determined to be transterred to the
buyerat the point of delivery to the buyer. This corresponds generally to the delivery date on the
saletocustomers.

ii. Rendering of services
Kevenue from rendening of services is recognised in prefitor loss in propertion to the stage of
completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed with
reference to surveys of work performed.

iil. Rentalincome
Fevenue from property rentals is recegnised inthe profit orloss on a straight line basis.

Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income an fixed deposits, loans to third parties. Finance
income is recognized as it ‘accrues in profit or loss. using the effective interest method.
Finance costs comprise interest expense on loans and berrowings. bank overdrafts and
impairment losses recognised on financial assets,

Baorrowing costs that are not directly attributabie to the acquisition, constructlon or production cfa
gualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method,

Foreign currency gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities are reported on a net
basis as eithertinance income or finance cost depending on whether foreign currency movements
are inanetgainornet loss position.

{m)Statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect method, Changes in statement of
financial position items that have not resulted in cash flows such as translation differences, fair
value changes, equity-settled share-based payments and other non-cash items, have been
eliminated for the purpose of preparing the statement, Dividends pald to ordinary shareholders are
included in financing activities. Finance cost Is alse included in financing activities while finance
income recejved isincluded in investing activities.

(m) Tax
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Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, Currenttax and deferred tax is recognised in profit
of loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, oritems recognised directly in
equity orin other comprenensive iIncome,

(i) Currenttax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to
tax payablein respect of previous years,

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legaily enforceable right to offset current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities
and assetsonanet basisor theirtaxassets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss account except to the extent that it relates to a
transaction that isrecognised directly in equity.

& deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that futurataxable profits
will be available against which the amount will be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to
the extentthat it is nolonger probabie that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income faxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis ortheirtax assets and liabilities
will be realized simultanecusly.

Dieferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences befween the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences!

i the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neitheraccounting nortaxable profit or loss

ii. differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the
extentthat it is probable that theywill not reverseinthe foresesable future

iii. temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill

Tax exposures

In determining the amount of current and deterred tax, the Group takes into account the
impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This
assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may invelve a series of judgements
about future events. New Information may become available that causes the Company to
change its judgement regarding the adeguacy of exsting tax liabilities: such changes to tax
liabilities will impact tax expensa inthe penod that sucha determination is made.

Minimum taxation

Minimum tax payable s caiculated using the tax rale applicable based on certain parameters
stipulated in the Migernan tax law. Any amount by which this mirimum amount payable
excesds company income tax is shown as minimum tax expense and presented separately in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehansive income,

(o) Earnings per share
The Group/Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary
shares, Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the protit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding during the period,
adjusted for own shares held. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding,
adjusted for own shares held and far the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any,
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(p) Government grants
Government grants are recognised at falr value when there is reasonable assurance that the
Company will comply with the canditions attaching to them and the grants will be received. Grants
related to Income are recognized as deferred income and allocated into profit or loss an a
systematic basis aver the periads in which the entity recognizes as expenses the related costs far
whichthegrantisintended to compensate,
The benefit of a government loan at below market rate of interest is treated as a government grant
related to income
Thie fair value of the government loan at below market rate of interest is estimated as the present
value of all future cash flows discounied using the prevailing market rate(s) of interest for a simifar
instrurment with a similar credit rating. The benefit of the government grant is measured as the
difference between the fair value of the loan and the proceeds received

(q) Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the Company's ather components, All operating segments’ operating
results are reviewed regularly by the Company's Board of Directors (BOD) to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its perforrnance, and for which discrete
financial information is available,

The Company's primary format for segment reporting is based on business segments. The
business segments are determined by management based on the Company's internal reporting
structure.

Segment results, assets and liabilities, that are reported to the BOD includes items directly
attributable to a segment as well asthose that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

(r) Dividends
Dividends are recognisad as liability in the period they are declared.
Dividends which remained unclaimed for a pericd exceeding twelve (12) years from the date of
declaration and which are no longer actionable by shareholders in accordance with Section 385 of
Companies and Allied Matters Act of Migeria are written back to retained earnings.

(s) Leases
(iy Leasedassets
Leases in terms of which the Group/Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classitied as finance leases. Upan initial recognition the leased asset is
measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset

Other leasas are operating leases and the leased assets are not recognized in the Group
/Company's statement ot financial position,

(iiy Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit ar loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease, Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the
total lease expense, over theterm of the lease.

Mirimum lease payments made under tinance leases are apportioned between the finance
expense and the reduction of the cutstanding liability. The finance expense isallocated to each
penad during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.'
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(t) Related parties
Related parties mclude the holding company and other group entities, Directors, their close family
members and any employee who is able o exert a significant influence on the operating policies of
the Company are alse considered to be related parties. Key management personnel are also
regarded as related parties, Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and contrelling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly,
Including any director (whether executive or atherwise) of that entity.

(u) Standards and interpretations not yet adopted
& number of new standards, amendments te standards and interpretations are effective forannual
pericds beginning after 1st January 2016, and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements. Those which may be relevant to the Group/Company are set out below, The extent of the
impact of these standards is yet to be determined. The Group/Company does not plan to adapt
these standards early. These will be adopted in the pericd that they become mandatary unless
otherwise indicated.,

= AmendmentstolAS 7 Disclosure Initiative- effective for periods beginning 1 January 2017
The amendments pravide for disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flow and non-cash changes. This includes providing a reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances arising from financing activities,

The Comparny will adopt the amendments for the yearending 31 December 2017,

= Amendments tolAS 12 Disclosure Initiative- effective for periods beginning 1 January 2017
The amendments provide additional guidance on the existence of deductible temporary
differences, which depend solely on a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset and its
tax base at the end of the reporting period, and is not affected by possible future changes inthe
carrying amount ar expected manner of recovery of the asset
The amendments also provide additional guidance on the methods used to calculate future
taxable profit to establish whether a deferred tax asset can be recognised.

Guidance is provided where an entity may assume that it will recover an asset for more than its
carrying amount, provided that there is sufficient evidence that it is probable that the entity will
achlevethis,

Guidance is provided for deductible temporary differences related to unrealised losses are not
assessed separately for recognition, These are assessed on a combined basls, unless a tax law
restrictsthe use of losses to deductions against income of a specific type.

The amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the financial statements of
the Company, The Company will adopt the amendments for the year ending 31 December 2017,

= IFR5 8-Financial Instruments (effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with early adoption permitted).
On 24 July 2014, the 1A5B |ssued the final IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Standard, which
replaces earlier versions of IFRS $and completes the |ASB's project to replace |AS 39 financial
instruments; Recogrition and Measurement,

= |FR3 & includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets,
and new general hedge accounting requirements- It alsocarries forward the guidance on
recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from 1AS5 39,
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The Company is yet to carry-out an assessment to determine the impact that the initial
application of IFRS 8 could have on (ts business; however, the Company will adopt the standard
for the yearending 31 December 2018,

= |FRS |5 Revenue from Cantracts with Customers- effective for annual periods beginning 1
January 2018,
This standard replaces I1AS 11 Construction Contracts, |1AS 18 Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer
Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transjfer
of Assets from Customers and SIC-31 Revenue — Barter of Transactions (nvalving Adieriising
Services.
The standard contains a single model that applies to contracts with customers and two
approaches to recognising revenue: at a polnt in time or over time The mode! features a
contract-based five-step analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and when
revenueis recognised,
This new standard will most likely have a significant impact on the Group (or Campany), which
will include a possible change in the timing of when revenue is recognised and the amount of
revenue recognised.
Thie Company s yet to carry-out an assessment to determine the impact that the initial
application of IFRS 15 could have on its business; however, the Company will adapt the
standard for the year ending 31 December 2018,

= |FRS5 16- Leases effective forannual periods beginning 1 January 2018

IFRS 16 replaces 1AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arangementi contains a
lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives and SIC-27 Evalualting the Substance of
Transactions nvalving the Legal Form of a Lease,

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract, L. the customer (" lessee’) and the supplier
[“lessor), [FRS 16 eliminates the classification of leases as operating leases or finance leases
asreguired by lAS 17 and introduces a single lessee accounting model. Applying that model, a
lessee is required to recognise;

a. dssets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months. unless the
underlying asset is of iow value; and

b. depreciation of lease assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the profit or
loss.
For the lessor, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements
in lAS 17, Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its' leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently,

The Company |5 yel to carry out an assessment to determine the impact that the initial
application of IFRS 16 could have on its business: however, the Company will adopt the
standard for the year ending 31 December 2019,

(v) New currently effective requirement
Mew |FRS Standards and amendments to existing standards that became effective for annual
pericds commencing on 1 January 2016 have been applied in preparing the financial statements
and resulted in additional disclosures (where applicable) but had no significant impact on the
amaounts and disclosures on this financial statement, The new IFRS standard and amendments to
existing standards is as follows:

= Clarfication of Accepfable Methiods of Depreciation and Amorisation (Amendments fo (AL 76
and 145 38)
- Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to A5 1)
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4 Determination of fairvalues
A number of the Group/Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of
fair value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. See note 28 (g) for basis of
determination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities. When applicable, further infarmatian
about the assumptions made in determining fairvalues is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset
orliabil iy,

a) Trade and other recelvables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the measurement date, Fair value for short-term
receivables with no stated interest rate is measured at the original inveice amount if the effect of
discounting 15 immaterial. Fair value is determined at initial recognition and for disclosure
purposes, at each annual reporting date.

b) MNon-derivative financial liabilities

Fairvalue, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of
future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting
date. For other non-derivative financial liabilities where the impact of discounting is not material,
their carrying amounts are fair approximations of their fair values, hence no further fair value
disclosures are made.

Segment Reporting
a Basis of segmentation

The Group has the following strategic divisions, which are its reportable segments. These divisions
offer different products and services, and are managed separately because they require different
technology and marketing strategies.

The following summary describes the operations of each reportable segment

Reportable segments Operations

Motar Vehicles Sale of Toyota & Ford Vehicles
Industrial equipment Sale and rnarketing of industrial equipment
Aftersales service saervicing and maintenance of vehicles

Property development Facllity Managemant, Development, sale and leasing of property,

The Group Chief Executive Officer (CED) reviews the internal management reports of each division
at least quarterly

Information about reportable segments

_Group - o B
31 December 2016 Segment Cost of Gross

_Revenue sales  profit

N'0D0O N'000 N'000

Motor vehicles and accessories 7,100,347 | (6.454,809) G45.538

Industrial equipment Tr2e229 | (577,579 184,650

Aftersales services and parts 1,064,280 (619,723 444551

Property development & facility management | Bl A18| (596,377) 275041

Total | 9,808,274 (8,248,494) 1,559,780
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Group
31 December 2015

Maotar vehicles and accessories

Industrial equipment

Aftersales services and parts

Property development & facility management

Company
31 December 2016

Maotar vehicles and accessories
Industrial equipment
Aftersales services and parts

Company
31 December 2015

Motar vehicles and accessories
Industrial equipment
Aftersales services and parts

Segment Cost of Gross
Revenue sales profit
N'000 N'000 N'000
B946,822 (5.635.836) 306.986
1,088,228 (886.020) | 1202.208
12089510 (7901 72) | 419,338
700,753 (504.827) 195926

11,945,313 (10,820855) 1,124,458

Segment
Revenue
7,100,347

567,686
1,085,186
8,751,219

_Revenue
N'000
B,946,821
B76,583

| 1,217 437

Cost of Gross
sales  profit
N'000  N'00D

(6,454.800) | 645538
(477.208)  90.481
(632,641) | 450,545

(7,564,655) 11,186,564

Costof  Gross

sales  profit
N'000 N'000
(8,639,836) 306,885
(7467700 128,813
(794,532) | 422,905

11,040,841 (10,181,138) 859,703

Assets and liabilities by reportable segments are not presented to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (Board of Directors) on a regular basis. Therefore, information on segment assets and

llabilities has not been presented.

Mo customer provided upto 10% of the revenue generated by the Group/Company.

Geographical Information

Nigeria is the Group/Company's only geographical segment as all of the Group/Company's sales
are made in Migeria. Accordingly, nofurther geographical segment information is reported.

6 Revenue

Sale of goods

Rendering of services

Sale of property units
Facilities Management fees

9,808,274 11,945,313

__Group _ Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N000 N'000 N'000
8,630,815  10.035.050 8,426,272 || 10,705,850
324047 | 1.209510 324,947 334,951
690,307 549,750 -
162,205 161,003
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7 Incomeand expenses
(a) Other income

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

N'D00 N'000 N'000 N'000

Rental income from property sub-lease 22,376 61,198 20,126 b4 445

Commission received 6,658 - 6,658 -

Insurance claims received 61,817 12,727 61,817 12,727
Gain on disposal of property. plant

and equipment 13914 2.136 13,684 1,543

Bad debts recovered 235,376 127,380 235,376 127,380

Sale of scrap items & other sundry income;  B806 || 17326 | 4319) | 13,437

345946 220,767 341,980 209,535

(b) Other expenses
Other expenses represent back-duty assessment by the FIRS in respect of withholding and
Value added taxes levied on the company during 2015,

(c) Impairment loss
Impairment loss represents an impairment of the Company's trade and other receivables that
are either considered irrecoverable or doubtful of recovery. These balances relate to customer
bhalances, VAT receivables, VAT input and withholding tax receivables outstanding from
customers.

Analysed as follows:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

- NO00 N'000 N'000 N'000
VAT receivable write-offs 138,285 1.072,049 738,285 1,072,049
Other receivables written off 136,544 . 136,644
Allowance for doubtful recevables
(trade, VAT and WHT) 063 BE6 214,206 BG3,.866 214,206
Write-back of excess impainmment
of Inventories (304,517 (304.517)

1,134,177 1,286,255 1,134,177 1,286,255

{d) Analysis of expenses by nature

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Cost of motor vehicles, accessaries
and parts 1682117 10,011,318 7,664,654 0,876,425
Personnel costs 629,153 829,439 E17.566 747,838
Directors fees 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100
Depreciation and amortisation 284,087 440,765 274,085 432,773
Rental expense 64,695 139,208 44,6834 86,204
Maintenance expenses 42,538 50,009 44,245 48,6867
lravelling expenses 48190 12,658 42 299 68,327
Legal and professional fees 188,048 161,847 173,508 142,249
Bank charges 7,184 58,190 459 bd 202

AT Brimoos [Mhgera) P | dnnual Rapot and Froncial Stolemesnls 2076 § swsifmacoe com

BRISCOE




Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

. Nooo N'000 N'000 N'000
Rates and taxes 25,852 1,082 20802 7,082
Gifts and donations 4 628 2,816 4 556 2,710
Business premises 257,604 192,485 240,693 111,758
Advertising expenses 6,702 48,066 4756 26,079
Entertainment expenses 11,139 16,343 10,8929 16,132
Security expenses 38,546 40,714 37,812 40,125
Vehicle expenses H3,508 63,083 81,890 61,762
Mesting expenses 19,302 | 15,019 19,302 15,019
Stationery expenses 9,256 11,906 9216 11,646
Cleaning expenses 17,537 17,138 17,152 16,828
Insurance premiums 27,213 29,256 24,185 26,184
Impairments 1,136,587 1,328,908 1,134,177 1,328,998
Foreign exchange losses - 61,608 - 61,608
Facility management expenses 23 370 18,495 - -
Property development expenses | 518512 | 406,263 |
Total cost of sales, selling and
distribution and administrative
expenses 11,085,976, 13,953,754 10,278,272 13,185,016
Analysed as follows:
Cost of sales (B 248:494)( | (10.820,855) | (7,564,664) | (10,181,138
Impairment loss (34177 | | (1,286255) | (1184177} | (1,285,255)
Selling and distribution expenses (186,534) {282 456) (184, 584) (260,957)
Administrative expenses (1,626,771} (1564,188)( (1,394,852) | (1,456 666)

(11,095,976) (13,953,754) (10,278,272) (13,185,016)

& Netfinance costs

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Interest on bank deposits gl o 41,700 18,721 a7,378
Investment income - Farapark 25,335 25,335 25,335 25,335
Interest on short term loan to related parties | 5,435 - 5,435 41,194
Gains on foreign exchange transiations | 134,343 4| 134,343 | :
Finance income 196,829 67,035 183,834 103,905
Interest on bank overdrafts (B46.860)| (1.172.030) (346,860)  (1,172,030)
Interest on commercial papers
& import facility L(:210641) @ (1.179.432) | (1.211.317) | (1.167.571)
Finance cost (2,057,501)  (2,351,462)  (2,058,177)  (2,339,601)

MNet finance costs

00§72 (2284421) | (1474343 (2.235,696)
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9 Loss before income tax
(a) Loss before income tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the following items:

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipmeant (Note 12)

Amaortisation of intangible assets (Mote 13)

Auditors’ remuneration
Directors’ rernuneration (Mote ()
Personnel expenses (Note (b))
Lease rental

Gain on disposal of property.
plant and equipment

{b) Personnel expenses

(1)

(iii)

BRISCOE

Personnel expanses comprise of:
Salaries, wages and other employee
costs

Contributions to compulsory pension
fund scheme

Expenses related to benefit plans
Statt training

The number of full time employees as at 31 December 2016 was as follows:

Managerial staff

Senior staff

dunior staff

Total number of employees

~ Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
260,077 439,653 251,185 432,113
24013 1,756 22,901 B
22,800 19,800 17,800 14,800
29,691 29,651 17,200 17,200
629,153 B70,.439 517,666 147 938
64,695 138,208 44 634 BG6, 204
(13,8914) (2,136) (13,684) (1,543)

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
558.691 601,884 447 104 B23.596
26,196 85,787 26,196 B2 574
358,623 48 871 38,623 48,871
5643 | 92807 | 5643 92,897
629,153 829,439 517,566 747,938

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
Number Number Number  MNumber
18 24 iz 20
143 1749 115 140
27 | 103 78] 72
_ 288 3 210 238

Employees of the Company. other than directors, whose duties were wholly or mainly
discharged in Migeria. received remuneration (excluding pension contributions and certain

benefits) in the following ranges:

M300,001- M350,000
M3B0,001- M400,000
MA00,001- MAKD,000
M500,000 and above

~ Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
Number Number Number Number
1 1 * .

14 9 *

4 6 - -
L 812 | 205 | 210 | 238
288 311 210 238
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(c) Directors' remuneration

Directors’ remuneration, excluding certain benefits of directors of the Company, who
discharged their duties mainly in Nigeria is as follows:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'00D  N'000 N'000 N'000
Directors' fees 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100
Remuneration - executive director(s) | 2853 || 28,591 | 16,100 | 16,100
29691 29,691 17,200 17,200

The emolument (excluding pension contributions and cerlain benefits) of the highest pald
director was N16,100.000 (2015: N16,100,000)

The number of other directors {excluding the Chairman and highest paid director) who received
emoluments excluding pension contributions and certain benefits were within the following
ranges: _
2016 2015

Number  Number
W E0.001- N100,000 . -
M100,001- M150.000 6 6
M150,001- N200.000 .
ME200,001- N12,300,000
M12,300,001 - N12,500,000

10 Tax expense
{a) The tax charge/icredit) for the year has been computed after adjusting for certain tems of
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expenditure. and income; which are not deductible or chargeable for tax purposes, and
COMPrses:

Group Company
206 2015 2016 2015
Current {ax expense N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Income tax — current year 75,439 31,402 . :
Tertiary education tax 8191 1,148 . :
Prior year under-provision of incometax | = || 163914 -1 | 163,914
80,630 196,554 - 163,914
Deterred tax (credit)/expense
Crigination and reversal of temporary
differences L B8OC | (321.033) = (320450)
Total tax expense 81,310  (124,479) = (156,536)

The Company did not make provision for company income tax in current and prior years as i
has no taxable income. The minimum tax of approximately N1 7milllion (2015:M18million) has
been adequately accrued for.
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(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Group ) Company _
2016 2015 2016 2015
% N'DOD % N'O0D % N'000 % N'000
Loss for the year (2.900,609) (4,181.641) (3.076.287) (4,247 819)
Total income tax expense 81,310 (124,473 - (156,536)
Loss before income tax (2:819.259) (4,308,120 (3,076,287} (4,404,355

Incame tax using

the domestic tax rate 30 (B45.790)| 30 | (1.291.836)| 30 | (922.886) 30 (1,321,306)
Effect of expenses not

deductible in

determining taxable

profit i) 157,566 (12) 510,354 (5) 158,543 (12) 510,354
Frior year under

provision - = (4] 163,914 . S 163,914
Tertiary education tax . 5.191 . - 2 - - .

Mowvement in deferred

tax assets not

recognised {27} 764,343 (11) 493,089 | (25) | 764,343 (1) 400,502
Total tax expense (3) 81,310 3 (124479) - - 3 (156,536)

{c) Mo income tax ansing from actuarial gain/ loss based on the remeasurement of define benefit
liability has been recognised in other comprehensive income, because there was no taxable
income in the year (2015: Nil} and the criteria for the recognition of the corresponding deferred
tax asset was not met( see Mote 22(a)) .

{d) Movement in current tax liability balance

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

N'D00 N'000 N'000 N'000
Balance, beginning of the vear 214 664 102,360 182,024 39,660
Prior year under provision (13,622 163,914 . 163,014
Current year charge 80,630 37 640 . .
Minimum tax charge** 16,871 18,009 16,871 18,099
Payments during the year (152462 {43,703} {134,080) -
With-holding tax utilised during the year (18,723) | (68.646) | (18,098)  (39.649)
Balance, end of year 126,358 214,664 46,717 182,024

** In line with the provisions of section 28a of the Companies Income Act 1979, minimum tax
charge has been computed using gross profit and turnover in excess of NS0O,000.

11 Earnings Per Share
Basic and diluied earnings per share for the Group and Company is based on the loss after tax for
the year of N2.8 billion and N3.7 billion (2015; Group: M4.2 billion and Company: N4.2 billion) and
on 1,176,353 685 (2015: 1,176,353,695) ordinary shares of 50 kobo each being the number of
grdinary in issue during the year

The Group and Company did not have any instrument that had a dilutive potential at the end of the
yEar,

AT Brimoos [Mhgera) P | dnnual Rapot and Froncial Stolemesnls 2076 § swsifmacoe com

BRISCOE




Notes 1o the Financial Statements contd.

12 Property, plant and equipment

(a) The movement for the year was as follows:

Total
N'000
5,350,587

124,588

857,611
_ (21.760)
6,311,124

6,311,124
B0,567

(11.067)
6,380,618

1,102,868
434,653

(11,434)

1,531,087

1,531,087
260,077

(7,099
1,784,065

4,780,031
4,596,553

Total
N'000

5,291,423
123.373

_(14,460)
6,257,947

Group
Plant and Motor
machinery, wehicle and Capital
Leasehold Dffice furniture I.T  transport Work in
land buildings and fittings equipment equipment  progress
N'00D N'000 N'000 N000 N000 N'000
Cost:
Al 1 Januvary 2015 2,802,641 1,118,293 420,534 174,984 560,856 273,279
Additians 73,504 - 10,500 6,137 8173 2h, 772
Reclassifications 213,279 17913 {1.B17) (10,096} [(273.279)
Revaluations 460,184 397,427
Disposals/writeoffs - _ _ {21,760 -
At 31 December 2015 3,609,608 1,515,720 448,947 173,304 337,773 25,772
At 1 January 2016 3,609,608 1,515,720 448,947 173,304 237,773 25,772
Additions 2,000 197 5505 3,828 9770 50,261
Raclassifications 3678 . . (9.678)
Revaluations . . -
Dispasalsiwrite offs - - - (11.067) -
At 31 December 2016 3,611, m 1,515,917 464,130 177,132 536,476 75,355
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2015 259,411 77,045 295,015 131,309 340,088 -
Depreciation for the year  Z5.PB4  2hs 4893 Bl Ty3 1577 B3, bak
Reclassifications {13,562} 5227 5.335
Disposal sfwrite offs (11,4
At 31 December 2015 284,675 331,538 342,256 151,753 421},355 -
At 1 January 2016 284,675 331,538 342,256 151,753 420,865 -
Depraciation for the year = 161,960 33,340 11,029 €3, 758
Raclassifications . s .
Disposals/write offs . = S - {T I:IQ'Q}
At31 December 2016 284675 483488 375506 162782 471,524 :
Carrying amounts :
At 31 December 2015 3,324,833 1,184,182 106,651 21,551 116,908 25,772
At 31 December 2016 3,326,933 1,032,429 88,534 14,350 58,952 75,355
(b) The movement for the year was as follows:
Company
Plant and Motor
machinary, wehicle and Capital
Leasahold Office furniture 1.T fransport Work in
land buildings and fittings equipment egquipment progress
N'000 N'000 N'000 N00D NO00 N'000
Cost:
At 1 January 2015 2 802,641 1,118,294 410,460 166,615 520,134 273, ETH
Additions 13.504,00 4,479 5.845 8,173 20, 77!
Reclasifications 27327 17,913 {7,817} (10,088)
Transters - - -
Revaluations 460,184 397427
[Disposalsfwrite offs ] = - {14.460)
At 31 December 2015 3,609,608 1,515,721 437,852 164,643 504,351 25,172
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Plant and Maotor

machinery, wehicle and Capital

Leasehold Office furniture I.T  transport Work in
land buildings and fittings equipment equipment  progress Total
© NOOD N'000 N'000 N'00D N'000 N'00D N'D00
At 1 January 2016 3,609,608 1,515,721 437,852 164,643 504,351 25,772 6,257,947
Additions 2000 197 5218 287 - 58,261 BH.64T
Reclasifications - - 9678 - - (9.678}) -

Revaluations - . . . . .
Disposal sfwrite otts - - {B.267) - (a, EE-'.I‘:I

At 31 December 2016 3 E11,Iﬂ! !.,515 HI 452,748 167,614 496,084 75,355 6, Ii! 327

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2015 259,411 77,045 289,511 124,854 317,278 - 1,068,000
Depraciation for the year 25264 254,493 b9, 560 14,181 19,766 432,713
Reclasifications {13.552) 5227 8.325

Disposalsfwrite offs - - - {10,066} - [ !EI.CE-E-?
At 31 December 2015 284,675 331,538 335,523 144,262 394,803 - 1,490,806
At 1 January 2016 284,675 331,538 335,528 144,262 394,803 - 1,490,806
Depreciation for the year - 151,950 J2184 10,085 96,956 - 251,185
Reclasifications - - - - - - -
Disposalsfwrite offs - . . . (4,299 . (4,299
AL31 Decomber2016 28475 483488 367,112 154357 447460 - 1,737,892

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2015 3,324,933 1,184,183 102,324 20,381 109,548 25772 4,767,141
At 31 December 2016 3,326,933 1,032,430 85,036 13,257 48,624 75355 4,581,635

(c) Revaluation of Property, plant and equipment
In 2015, the Company carried out a revaluation of the leasehold land and building asset
category of property, plant and equipment. The Company engaged an independent valuer,
Ghenga Olanivan and Associates (FRC/2013/00000000001837) to carry cut the revaluation. The
effective date of the revaluation was 31 December 2015, No revaluation was carred out in 2016
as management consider that there has been no materlal change in fair value of the properties
during the year.

The carrying amount that would have been recogmised had the revalued land and bullding been
carried under cost model is shiown below:

Group and Company
Asset Category Leasehold land
and building
2016 2015
N'000 N'000
Cost
At 1 January 1.400.337 | 1,053,554
Additions 2187 73.504
lransters L =l 273279
At 31 December 11,402,534 1,400,337
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Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January

Depreciation for the year

At 31 December

Carrying amount at 31 December

358,424
151,950

510374
. 892,160

Mo revaluation surplus was recognised during the year {2015: N857.6 million).

Balance as at 1 January
Revaluation surplus (Note 12(b))

(d) Security

2016
N'000
2,864,778

2,864,778

336,456
01,068
358,424
1,041,913

2015
N'000
2,007,157
857,611

2,864,778

The Company provided negative pledges over its assets in respect of its term loans, import

finance facilities and overdraft facilities with its bankers,

(e) Capital work in progress

This represents an iterm of plant and machinery which was yet to be available for use as at the

end of the vear.

{f) Capital commitments

The Group and the Company had no authorised or contracted capital commitments at the

reporting date (2015: nil)

13 Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software, the movement on the account for the year was as

follows:

Cost

At 1 January BNE
Additions

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2016
Additions -
At 31 December 2016

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 215

Charge for the year _

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2016
Charge for the year
At 31 December 2016

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2015
At 31 December 2016

Group Company

N'000
51,667
2 146
53,813

53,813

21966

3953

N'000
47,219
2146
49,365

49,365
49 365

23,536
__B44
24,180
24, 180
22,5901
47,081

25,185
2,284

The Company provided negative pledges over its assets in respect of its term loans, import finance

facilities and overdraft facilities with its bankers.
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Goodwill

Effective 30th October 2011, R.T Briscoe (Nigeria) PLC, ('The Company”), acquired controlling
shares in Briscoe Properties Limited. The goodwill on acguisition is the excess of purchase
consideration over the net assets acquired. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has
been allocated to Briscoe Properties Limited. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually,
Impairment is determined by comparing the carrying amount of the cash generating unit with the
recoverable amaunt. The useful life of goodwill at the reporting date is assessed to be indefinite
with no impairment losses. As at 31 December 2016 the carrying value of the goodwill is
M33.9million (2015: N33.9million)

Cash Generating Units

The recoverable amount of the cash generating units is determined based an the value in use
calculation which uses cash flow projections based on five year projection of current year EBITDA
and an average cost of capital of 11% per annum(2018: 11% per annum},

The directors believe that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions an which the
recoverable amount is based weould not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the
agaregate recoverable amounts of the cash generating unit.”

Key forecast assumptions

The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations for the cash generating units are as

follows:

- Discount rate: 119% (2015: 11%. The discount rate was a post-tax measure estimated based an
the historical industry average weighted- average cost of capital, with a possible market interest
rate of 11%

- Met cash flow: The MNet cash fiow is based on 5-year forcast using 2016 as the base year.

Budgeted EBITDA growth rate; The growth rate of 10% (2015 10%) has been applied based on
management expectations of improvement in performance of the Company.

Inflation rate; Inflation rate is based on forecast consumer price indices during the pericd for
the Country. &n inflation rate of 18% is has been applied for the current vear{ 2015; 13%). The
value assigned to the key assumption is consistent with the external sources of informaticn.

The cash flow projections included specific estimates for five years and a terminal growth rate
thereafter. The terminal growth rate was determined based on management's estimate of long-term
compound annual EBITDA growth rate, consistent with the assumptions that a market participant
would make.

Other investments

Other investments relates to the Company's investment in ‘equity notes' in Fara Park Limited
classified as leans and receivables, with a guaranteed return of 18% per annum. Management has
commenced procedures to redeem these notes.

The information about the Group's exposure to credit and market risks, and fair value
measurements, is included in Note 28,
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16 Investments in subsidiaries
{a) Investments in subsidiaries comprise
Set out below is the Company's investment in subsidiaries

_ Company

2016 2015

N'000 N'000
Briscoe Properties Limited 155,501 141,400
CAWS Technical Nigeria Limited 1,000 1,000
Suite Resorts Limited 4,075 4,075
Briscoe Leasing Limited* 2,000 2,000
IMC Airpower Limited® 10,000 10,000
Briscoe-Ford Nigeria Limited® 10,000 10,000
Briscoe Garages Limited* 1,000 1,000

____igﬁi ': ; 169,475

This represents the investment in non-operational entities owned by the Company,

{b) Group structure

Direct and Indirect Holding

% %

Subsidiary 2016 2015
Briscoe Properties Limited - See note 16 (¢) 100 96
CAWS Technical Nigeria Limited 100 100
Suite Resorts Limited 100 100
Eriscoe Leasing Limited 100 100
IMC Airpower Limited 100 100
EBrnscoe-Ford Migeria Limited 100 100
Briscoe Garages Limited 100 100

{c) Acquisition of Non-Controlling Interest (NCI)
During the year, the company bought over the 4% shares held by the non-controlling interest
holders in its subsidiary, Briscoe Properties Limited for the sum of N14.1million, thershy
increasing the Company's interest in the subsidiary from 96% to 100%, The carrying amount of
Briscoe Properties Limited's net assets on the date of acquisition was N404.5million. The Group
recognised a decrease in NCI of N14,7million and an increase in retained earnings of N585,000,

N'000
Carrying amount of NCl acquired 14,686
Consideration paid __(14,101)
Increase in equity attributable to owners of the Company 585
17 Inventories

_ Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Motor vehicles, parts & accessories 696,819 4,292 841 696,819 4,292,841
Industrial equipment & parts 442 BES 135,368 372,632 639,551
Service work in progress 50,468 46,042 50,468 46,042
Trading properties 395 534 25 9 . -
Consumables 5,169 4,358 5,169 4,359
Inventories in transdt | PESB37 || 487 | | 299837 | 487
1,890,692 6,004,996 1,424,825 4,983,280
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Less: Allowance for obsolete spares

and slow moving stock | (75784) || (380,301)| | (75.784)| (380.301)
1814908 | 5624695 1,348,141 4,602,979

The cost of inventory recognised in the Company's cost of sales amounted to N7.6 billion (2015

M0 billion).

In current year, there were no write-down of inventories to net realisable value (2015:N42.7 million).
The Company provided negative pledges over its assets in respect of its ferm loans, import finance
facilities and overdraft facilities with its bankars.

Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N000 N'000
Trade receivables 403 387 166,042 364,770 BBT,673
Staff loans and advance 56,197 42 BTH h&411 41 BaZ
Dug from related parties (Mote 25) 131,700 181,080 316,303 385,232
Other receivables 03,958 37,447 03,8958 12,851
Deposits with Company's registrars for dividend 56,956 36,245 56,955 36, 245
Advances to suppliers b = | B17917 | =l B179B
B32,197 1,681,416 BB7,397 1,761,811
Value added tax receivables 06,833 671,796 05, B42 657411
Withholding tax receivables B85, M13 | | 421923 || BIGBIS| 421923
1,514,743 | 2,775,135 = 1,560,074 2,841,145
Mon-current 245,114 115,857 246114 115,857
Current 1,268,629 2660279 1,313,860 2,125,288

1,514,743 | 2,775,136 1,560,074 2,841,145

The Group's exposure to credit and currency risks. and impairment losses related to trade and
other receivables is disclosed in Mote 28,

Prepayments
Prepayments representing prepaid rent and insurance comprise;
Group Company

206 2015 2016 2015
N'00D N'000 N'000 N'000
Prepaid rent 38,778 58,945 38,778 58,945
Other prepaid expenses | 28020 || 15783 | 10,143 | 9,452
67,798 . 14,728 48,921 ! 68,397
Mon-current 4 555 14,259 4 BR5 14,269
Current 63,243 60,469 44 366 54,138
- 67,798 74,728 48,921 68,397
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20 Cash and cash equivalents

21

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Cash in hand 3473 6013 2204 5,290
Bank balance | 728570| 476881 | 396220/ 424,959
Cash and bank deposits in the
statement of financial position | 732,049 482,894 398494 430,249
Bank overdrafts used for cash
management purposes (5,744,149)  (4,752,160)  (5,744,149) (4,744,822)
Cash and cash equivalents in the
statement of cash flows (5,012,100)  (4,269,266)  (5,345,655) (4,314,573)

Included in cash and cash eguivalents are unclaimsad dividend amounting to M52 million held in
separate bank account in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission. This amount is restricted from use by the Company.

The Company's exposure to credit, currency and liguidity risks related to cash and cash eguivalents
is disclosad in Nate 28,

Employee benefits

Group and Company
2016 2015
N'000 N'000
Defined benefit (gratuity) liability (note (b)) 19672 B1,747
Long service award benefit obligation (note (a)) | b1;880| 42,080
Total employee benefit liabilities . 137,452 123,827

The Company's defined benefit end of service gratuity obligation represents the estimated amaount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods and that benefit is discounted to determing its present value. In determining the liability
under the defined benefit scheme, consideration is given to future increases in salary rates and the
Companys experience with staff turnover. The recognised liability is determined by an independent
actuarial valuation performed by Giant Consultants Limited using the projected unit credit method.
The report was signed on behalf of the firm by Femi Odutela Odulana (FRC/2013/MAS/00000001320).

The Company also operates a long service award scheme for all permanent employees to reward
their meritoricus service during employment. The Company's obligations in respect of this scheme
is the amount of future benefits that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods. The recognised liability is determined by an independent actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method by the same firm.

The subsidiaries do not operate long service award scheme and defined benefit end of service
gratuity obligation .
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(a) Movement in the present value of the long service awards obligation
Group and Company

Notes to the Financial Statements contd.

2016 2015

N'000 N'000

Balance at 1 January 42,080 7,531
Charged to profit or loss 16,300 15,389
Payments during the year . (500) | (850)
Balance at 31 December 57,880 42,080

This represents the present value of the long service award scheme obligation in respect of the

Company's employees as at year end.

{b) Movement in present value of the defined benefit gratuity obligation
Group and Company

2016 2015
N'000 N'000
Balance at 1 January B1,747 114,729
Included in profit or loss
Current service costs 13,174 15,235
Interest costs on obligation 9,149 | 18,237
22,323 33,472
Included in other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain recognised in other comprehansive income (7,765) | (23,801}
(7,765) (23,801)
Other ] '
Benefits paid | (16,733} | (42,653
Balance at 31 December 79,572 81,747

(c) Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages) fall
under two broad categories, These assumptions depict management's estimate of the likely
tuture experience of the Company, The same assumptions has been used for both defined
benefit obligation and Long Service Award

Financial Assumptions

2016 2015
Discount rate {p.a.) ' 15% | 12%
Future salary increase (p.a.) 13.5% 13.5%
Future rate of inflation (p.a.) 10% 10%
Benefit increase rate {p.a) 12% 129

BRISCOE

Demographic assumptions
Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.

Martality in Service

The rates of mortality assumed for employees are the rates published In the ABT/T0 Ultimate
Tables, published jointly by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries in the UK. This is due to
unavailability of published rellable demographic data in Nigeria.
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Number of deaths ina

year out of 10,000 lives
Sample age 2016 2015
% 7 7
ot 7 7
35 g g
40 14 14

45 26 26

Withdrawal from Service
Withdrawa! from service means retirement; voluntary or compulsory disengagement from service,

Rate
Age Band 2016 2015
Upte 30 Rig Rig
31-35 55 5
36-40 5% 50
41-45 2% 29
4B8-60 206 P
51 and above Mil Mil

The calculation of the defined benefit chligation is sansitive to the mortality assumptions set out
above. As the actuarial estimates of mortality continue to be refined, an increase of one year in
lives shown above is considered reasonably possible in the next financial year,

{d) Sensitivity Analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions,
holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the employee benetit obligation as
shown below,

Defined benefit liability Rate N'000 N'000
2016 2015

Discount rate -1% 789,606 B4 581
1% 79,554 80,893

Future Salary increase rate -1% 78,658 80,938
1% 79,5685 B2,B08

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected
under the plan. it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

22 Deferred taxation
{a) Unrecognised deferred tax assets (Company)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, because it was
considered improbable that future taxable profit will be avallable against which the Company
can use the benefits therafrom,
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In thousands of naira 2016 2015
Property, plant and equipment (420,8932) | (490 826)
Emplovee benefits 41,236 37,148
Unrealised exchange loss 18482
Impairment allowance on trade receivables 113,908 -
Unabsorbed capital allowance carry-forward 138,457 106,106
Unrelieved tax losses carried forward | 1,445,467 | BB2 BEZ
(1,318,135 553,792
(b) Movement in deferred tax balances (Group)
Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the following:
2016
Recognised
Recognised in other Balance Deforred Daferrad
In thousands of naira Balance in profit comprahensive 31 December tax tax
1 January or loss income 20168 | liabilities asseis
Property, plant
and equipment {1,463) (B30) {2,143) - (2,143}
- (1,463) (680) - (2,143) - (2,143)
2015
Property, plant
and equipment 1,116,909 2hh 232 (860,214} (1,463) (1,463}
Employee benefits 42,678 (52.095) (9,417 - :
Unrelieved tax loss 236,042 (236,542 =
Allowance for
oubtful debts 118.573 (118,573
Stock obsolescence
allowance 191,422 (191,422
Unrealised
exchange gain 3,105 (3,108
Unabsorbed capital
allowance carry-
forward 202,093  (202.093) - .
(322,496) (548,598) (869,631) (1,463) (1,463)
23 Trade and other payables
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Trade payables 316,053 683,623 274,251 594 BE3
Accrued expenses 240 616 574,273 162,229 334,801
Deposit by customers 429,661 920,882 4729, 661 613,982
Pension payable (Note a) 8,957 10,412 B.B57 9 528
Mon income taxes 261 798 267,812 265 539 267,812
Other payables 129,342 9,385 129,342 9,385
Amounts due to related parties =1 | - 42,952
1,386,427 2466397 1,249,979 1,873,023

The Group and Compary's exposure to currency and liguidity risk related to trade and other

payables is disclosed In Note 28.

BRISCOE
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{a) The movement in pension payable is as follows:

Balance at 1 January
Contribution for the year
Payments during the year

Balance at 31 December

24 Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings at the year end 15 analysed as follows:

Current borrowings:

Term loan facility due within 1 year
Import finance facilities due within 1 year
Commercial papers due within 1 year

Non Current borrowings:
Term loan facility due after 1 year
Total loans and borrowings

(1) Terms and conditions of outstanding loans were as follows:

Currency
Secured term loan facility NGN
Secured impart finance facility NGHM
Unsecured Commercial papers NGN

Tatal Interest bearing liabilities

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
10412 G.037 9,528 5,048
45,157 47,875 42 B57 2,029
(46.613) (43,500} (43,229) . (37,549)
. 8987 10412 8857 9,528
__ Group ___Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
2.050,381 384,867 2,060,381 384,867
1.979.957 5431774 1,979,957 5.491,774
A8 28305 | WTI8| | 28,305
4,038,056 5,904,946 4,038,056 5,904,946
. 300566 | 435689 | 300666| 4350689
(4,338,622 6,340,635  4,338622 6,340,635
2016 2015

Mominal
interest Year of Carrying Carrying
Rate (%) maturity amount amount
N'000 N'000
18.90 - 20,00 201 2,350,847 220,556
16.50-19.00 2o 1,579,957 0,451,774
10.00 - 14.00 2016 1718 28,305
4,338,622 6,340,635

The bank facilities are secured with a negative pledge over the Company's asseis,

25 Related party transactions

During the year, the Company entered into contractual relationships with its related parties.
Transactions with the related party are mainly in the nature of payments for expenses on behalf of

each other and sale of goods,

Amount due from related parties (Note 18)
Amount due to related parties (Note 23)

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
131,700 181,000 316,303 386,232
- : - (42,952
131,700 181,090 316,303 342,280
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Subsidiaries:

Notes to the Financial Statements contd.

Briscoe properties  Sale of goods and services, |

Lirmited loans and related Interests
and others.

CAWS Technical Purchase of goods and

Migeria Limited services and Inter
Company loan

Others Investment in subsidiaries

Other related parties:

Olawoyin &

Olawoyin Legal services

Toyota Nigeria

Limited Purchase of goods

Balance

Transaction value receivable/(payable)

2016 2015 2016 2015

N'000 N'00D N'000 N'000

15,736 68,109 6,349 43 #72

82,528 107,395 178,254 117,318

14,101

750 1,150 -

| 2,800,712 | | 4,730,016| | 131,700 | 181,000

| 316,303 342,280

Retated party transactions disclosed is inclusive of the relevant value added tax applicable an the

transactions

The amounts cutstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. Mo provisions have been made
for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties as the amounts are deemed to

be recoverable,

(b) Key management personnel compensation comprised:
In addition to their salaries, the Group and Company also provides non-cash benefits to
directors and executive officers, and operates a post-employment defined benefit scheme on
their behalf, In accordance with the terms of the plan, directors and executive officers are

entitled to receive post employment benefits.

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N000
Short-term employes benefits 55,981 67,211 53,893 B4,720
Contribution to compulsary
pension fund scheme 6,520 6,331 | | 5314 5,394
72,481 73,542 59,206 60,114
26 Capital and reserves
{a) Share capital is analysed as follows:
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'D00 N'000 N'000 N'00O0
Authorised ordinary shares of 50 kobo each
At 1 January 3,250,000 3,250,000 3,260,000 3,250,010
Additions - . . .
At 31 December IE._EEII.I.’IH_H . 3,250,000 I.ZE_D_.m_ 3,250,000

BRISCOE
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28

lssued, allotted and fully paid ordinary shares of 50 kabo each

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
At 1 January | 588477 | 588.177, | B8BATE| 58817
At 31 December 588,177 588,177 588,177 588,177
(b) Share Premium
At 1 January | 409862 | 409862 | 409.862| 409862
At 31 December 409,862 409,862 409,862 409,862

21l shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. The: holders of ordinary
shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one
vote per share at meetings of the Company.

(c) Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of property, plant and equipment as shown in
Mote 12(c)

2016 2015
Group and Company N'000 N'000
Balance as-at 1 January 2,864,778 2,007,167

Revaluation surplus (Note 12(b)) [ =l B5761
| 2,864,778 2,864,778
Dividend Payable

Dividend payable represents unclaimed dividend trom prior years. The movement on this account
was as follows:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Balance at 1 January 81,047 81,047 B1,047 B1,047
Linclaimed dividend** | 35488 | -1 | 35,488 | -
Balance at 31 December 116,535 81,047 116,535 81,047

** amount represents dividend payments not yet forwarded to shareholders,

Financial risk management and Financial instruments

The Group and Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
= credit nsk

= liguidity risk

= market rish

= operational risk.

This note presents information about the Group and Company's exposure to each of the above
risks. the Group's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the
Group's management of capital, Further guantitative disclosures are Inciuded throughout these
financial staterments
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Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's
risk management framework, The Board of Directors has delegated the responsibility for
developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policles to  the management of the
Group. The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls. and to monitor risks and adherence
to controls, Rigk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Group's activities,

(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group i a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual chligations, and arises principally from the Group's
receivables from customers

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Trade and other receivables™ 15242 1.027.254 800,442 1,107 648
Cash and bank balances 132,049 482 804 398,494 430,249
Other investments 140,000 140,000 | | 140,000 140,000

647,291 | 1,650,148 1368936 1,677,897

*  Advance payments, with-holding tax and VAT receivables have been excluded as they are
not financial instruments.

Trade and other receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The Group considers that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk in
relation to the trade receivables. However, credit risk can arise in the event of non-performance of a
counterparty. Purchase limits are established for each customer, which represents the maximum
allowed open amount. These limits are reviewed bi-annually. Customers that fail to meet the
Group's benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the Group only on a cash-and-carry basis.

The Group considers that the concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited
given that the Group grants a credit pericd of 30 to 45 days to selected customers, which mitigates
the nsk of default by customers. In addition, the Group tries to mitigate the credit risk by adopting
specific control procedures, including regular assessment the credit worthiness of the
counterparty and limiting the exposure io any one counterparty.

Deductions-are made on a monthly basis from staff emoluments to recover any outstanding loan
liabilities, and any other outstanding loan balance is deducted from an exiting employee's final
entitiements. There has been no history of default in respect of amounts due from related
companies as such amounts are always settled in full. Accordingly management does not consider
any credit risk in respect of amount due from related parties.
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The maximum exposure to credit risk tor trades and other receivables at the reparting date was:

Group Company
2006 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Trade receivables 1,548,683 166,042 1,420,065 6E7T, 673
Staff loans and advance 56,197 42 615 b5 411 41,897
Amounts due from related parties 131,700 181,080 316,303 385,232
Other receivables 93,958 37,447 83,858 12,851

1,027,254 1,885,738 1,107,648
Impairment losses -
The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was:

Group Company
____2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Mot past due 401,039 264 267 272422 165,808
Past due 91-180 days 21,8487 83,496 21,897 B3 496
Past due 181-360 days 41,716 150,200 41,7116 150,200
Past due above 360 days 1,084,031 304,324 1,084,031 304,324

1,548,683 802,287 _l_,laﬁ;ﬁa_l: 703,918

The moverment in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the
year was as follows:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Balance at 1 January (B41.423) (B35,031) (541,423) (635,031)
Additional allowance far the year (563,86E) {186,255) {563, 866) (186,255)
Amount written off [ (237ue| | (20,137) | | (237.178) | (20,137)
Balance at 31 December (1,642,468)  (841,423) (1,642,468)  (B41,423)

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents which represents its maximum credit exposure an
these assets. The cash and cash eguivalents are held with bank and financial institution
counterparties, which are reputable and have a sound financial position,

Other investments

The Company held ‘equity notes' amounting to N140 million which represents its maximum credit
exposure on this asset, The Company has consistently earmed interest income at the agreed rate
and sa far there is no indication of impalrment on this asset,

(b} Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and company will encounter difficulty in meeting the
abligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group's and company's approach to managing liguidity is to ensure, as far
as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the Group's reputation,
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The Group and company has an appropriate liguidity risk management framework for the
Group's and company's short, medium and long term liquidity requirements and makes monthly
cash flow projections, which assists in monitoring cash flow requirements and cptimizing cash
return an investrments.

Typically the credit terms with customers are more favourable compared to payment terms to its
vendors in order to help provide sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational
expenses, including the servicing of financial obligations. This excludes the potential impact of
extreme circumstances that cannat reasonably be predicted. such as natural disasters.

The fallowing are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest
payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Group [

31 December 2016 Carrying Contractual 1 year 1to2
Note  amount cash flows or less years

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Mon-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 1,257,084 1,257,084 1,257,084 .

Loans and borrowings 24 4,338 622 4,338,622 4 038,066 300,566

Bank overdrafts 20 5,744,149 5,744,149 5,744,149

11,339,855 11,339,855 11,039,289 300,566
31 December 2015 — N o

MNon-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 2,198,585 2,198 585 2,148,685 .
Loans and borrowings 24 6,340 635 6,340 635 5,904 946 435 B89
Bank overdratts 20 4,752,160 4,752,160 4,752,160

13,291,380 13,291,380 12,855,691 435,689

Company -
Carrying Contractual 1 year 1to2
) _ _ Note amount cash flows or less years
Mon-derivative financial liabilities N'00OD N'000 N'000 N'000
Trade and other payables 1,124,903 1.124.803 1.124,903 E
Loans and borrowings 24 4,338 622 4,338,622 4,038,056 300,566
Bank overdratts 20 | 5744149 5744149 5,744,149

__ 11,207,674 1_i 207,674 10,907,108 300,566
31 December 2015 ' — :
Mon-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 1,605,211 1,606,211 1,605,211 :
Loans and borrowings 24 6,340,635 6,340,635 5,804 946 435,689
Bank overdratts 20 4,744,822 4,744 822 4,744 827

12,690,668 12,690,668 12,254,979 435,689

Trade and other payables has been adjusted for statutory deductions like PAYE, VAT, WHT, ITF
egtc. 1 is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturty analysis could ocour
significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts.
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{c) Market risk
The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial nisk of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates, There has been no change to the Group's exposure to market
risks or the manner in which it 1s manages and measures the risk during the year,

Foreign currency risk

The Group s exposed to currency risk on sales and purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the Group, primarily the Naira, The
currencies in which these transactions primarily are denominated are Euro, United States
Dellar (USD), Japanese Yen (JPY) and United kingdom pound sterling (GBP). The currency
risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to the changes in fareign exchange rates.

The Group's policy is to ensure that its net exposure in respect of monetary assets and
ltabilities denominated in foreign currencies are kept to an acceptable level by buying or
salling forelgn currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short term imbalances.

Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk as reported
to the Management of the Company based on its risk management pelicy was as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Eure USD JPY GBP Euro uso JPY GBP
Amounts in thousands

Trade and other receivables 8 B12 i 3 365
Cash and cash equivalents ¢ 259 - & 32 19
Trade and other payables | (146}  (40) = - | (24 (543) : -
Net exposure (136) 1,031 6 2 8 (169) - -
The following significant exchange rates applied during the year;
Year end
Average rate spot rate

2016 2015 2016 2015
Eurg Seal | | 213.58 Jec. 11| | 217.86
United States Dollars (USD) 315.00 | 188.00 305.00| | 19912
GBP 380.00 | 275.68 areatsl | 291,83
JPY 1.70 1.58 1.65 1.65

Il Sensitivity analysis

A reasonable possible strenghtening’ (weakening) of the Naira, as indicated below,
against major foreign currencies would have affected the measurement of financial
Instruments denominated in foreign currency and {increased)/ decreased equity and
profit or loss by the amounts shown below, This analysis 1s based on foreign currency
exchange rate variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest and inflation rates, remain constant and ignores any Impact of forecast sales
and purchases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements comtd.

Effect in thousands of Naira (Increase)/
decrease

in profit

or loss

2016

Euro (20% weakening of the Maira) 9,230
USD (20% weakening of the Maira) (62 B71)
2015

Euro (20% weakening of the Maira) (354)
LISD (20% weakening of the Maira) 6710

A 20 percent strengthening of the Maira against the above currencies at the reporting date
would have had the equal but opposite effect to the amounts shown above.

{d) Interest rate risk

The Group adopts a policy of ensuning that its interest rates for its impart finance facilities and
commercial papers are at a fived rate, as much as possible, other facilities are at vanable rates.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial
instruments was:

Group Company
Carrying Amount Carrying Amount
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Variable rate instruments
Bank cverdratts 5,744,148 4752160 5,744,149 4,744 B2
Fixed rate instruments | - ¥
Loans and borrowings 4 338 622 £.340,635 | 4.338,62 B,340,635

Fair value sensitivity analysis for tixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed financial assets and habilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Theretore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not attect profit or
loss,

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

& decrease of 100 basis points (BP) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased
(decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables. in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant,

Group Company
Profit or loss Profit or loss
2016 2015 2016 2015
100BP  100BP 100 BP 100 BP
N'000 N'000 N000 N'000
Variable rate instruments 9478 T.841 9,478 7829
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 9,478 7,841 9,478 1,829

An increase of 100 basis points (BPF) in interest rates at the reporting date would have had the
equal but opposite effect to the amounts shown above,

BRISCOE
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(e) Operational risk
Operational risk 1s the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes
associated with the Group's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from
external factors other than credit, market and liguidity risks such as thase arising from legal
and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour,
Operational risks arise from all of the Group's operations,

The Companys cobjective is to manage operational risk so as fo balance the avoidance of
financial losses and damage fo the Company's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to
avold control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and impiementation of controls to address

operational risk is assigned to management. This responsibllity is supported by the

development of overall Company standards for the management of operational risk in the

following areas:

= Documentation of processes, contrals and procedures.

= Pericdic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and
procedures to address the risks identified by the risk management committee,

= Training and development of employees.

= Appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization of fransactions.

=  Maonitoring of compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements.

= Requirements for reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action,

= Reconcillation and monitoring of transactions.

= Development, communication and monitaring of ethical and acceptable business practices

= Risk mitigation, including insurance when this is effective.

= Monitoring of business process performance and development and implementation of
improvement mechanisms thereof,

Compliance with the Company's standards, established procedures and controls s
supported by peniodic reviews undertaken by management, Deficiencies are discussed with
management for corrective action with summares submitted to Board of the Company,

(f) Capital management
The Group's ohiectives, when managing capital, are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for the shareholders and to maintain an aptimal
capital structure to reduce cost of capital, In arder to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company or its subsidiaries may, among other things, issue new shares or convert debt o

equity,
The debt to adjusted capital ratio at the end of the year was as follows:
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Total liabilities 11,851,686 13,980,193 | 11,633454 13,345,378
Less: cash and cash eguivalents (132,049) | |  (482,894)| (398,494)  (430,249)
Met debt 11,119,637 | | 13.497.2949 | 11234960 12915129
Tatal equity (2,947.683) | (40,738)| | (3,368,329) (300,807)
Debt to adjusted capital ratio {4) | (331) (3 143)

Due to the position above, management is exploring various options as detalled in Note 32 to
achieve a better debt to equity ratio.
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(g) Accounting classification and fair values
The analysis below shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and labilities,

Group

31 December 2016

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade and other recenvables

Other investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabllities not measured at fair value
rade and other payables

Bank overdrafts

Loans and borrowings™

Dividend payable

Carrying amount

Other

Loansand  financial
receivables  liabilities Total
N'000 N'000 N'000
775,242 775,242
140,000 140,000
L 732,049 732,049
1,647,291 - 1647201
1.257.084  1,257.084
5,744,149 5744149
4338622 4338622
1165635 116,535
- 11,456,390 11,456,390

* Included in loans and borrowings are two (2) facilities with tenures of 24 months each,
amounting to a total of N2.35 billion, the fair value as at the reporting date based on amortised

cost 15 NZ.35 billion,

Carrying amount

31 December 2015 Other
Loans and financial
receivables  liabilities Total
N'000 N'000 N'000
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade and other receivables 1,107,648 1.107.648
Other investments 140,000 140,000
Cash and cash eguivalents 430,245 430,249
1,677,897 - 1,677,897
Financial liabllities not measured at fair value
lrade and other payables 2,188,585 2,188,585
Bank owerdrafts 4,762,160 4,762,160
Loans and borrowings 6,340,635 6,340,635
Dividend payable 81,047 8049
- 13,372,427 13372427
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Company Carrying amount
Other
Loans and financial
- receivables liabilities Total
31 December 2016 N'000 N'000 N'000
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade and other receivables 230,842 - Bal 442
Other investments 140,000 . 140,000
Cash and cash equivalents 308,494 - 398,494
1,368,936 - 1,368,936
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade and other payables . 1,124,903 1,124,903
Bank overdrafts - 5,744 149 5. 744 149
Loans and borrowings® - 4,338,622 4,338,622

116,536 116,635
11,324,209 11,324,209

Dividend payable

Included in loans and borrowings are two (2) facilities with tenures of 24 months each,
amounting to a total of N2.35 billion. the fair value as at the reporting date based on
amertised cost is N2.35 billion.

31 December 2015
Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade and other receivables 1,107 648 - 1,107,648
Other investments 140,000 3 140,000
Cash and cash eguivalents 430,249 - 430,249
1,677,897 - 1,677,897
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade and other payables - 1,124,903 1,124,903
Bank overdrafts - 4,744 822 4,744,822
Leans and borrowings . 6,340,635 B6.340,635
Dividend payable - 81,047 81,047

- 12,291,407 12,281,407

Except as highlighted above, the fair value of all other financial instruments have rict been
disclosed because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair values.

29 Contingencies
{a) Ongoing litigation with Diamond Bank (Nigeria) PLC
During the year, one of the Company's bankers, Diamond Bank Migera PLC (DENM) on the basis
that the Company was unable to liguidate and/or offset the various facilities granted it by the
bank;

i. petitioned the Federal High Court Lagos to wind up the Company and

ii. applied for and obtained an Ex-parte Order restraining the Company from dealing with its
properties and/or withdrawing any of its funds with DBM and other financial institutions in
Migera.
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3

Ex-parte Order

The Company applied to the Court on 22 June 2016 to set aside the Interim Order {(Ex-parte
Order) on the ground that the Petitioner suppressed material facts in obtaining the Order. The
Application was heard on 8 July 2016 and the Court ruled in the Company's favour and set aside
the Ex-parte Order. Having been dissatistied with the Court ruling of 8 July 2016, the Petitioner
(DBM) on 15 July 2016 appealed to the Court of Appeal.

Winding-up Case

&t the resumed hearing of the case on 27 September 2016, First Bank of MNigeria Limited, Skye
Bank PLC and United Bank for Africa PLC (other creditors and bankers of the Company) were
represented in Court as interested parties. The Court however directed the parties to try to reach
an amicable resolution of the matter. Unfortunately, they were unable to agree on settlement
terms consequent upon which the mater proceeded in Court,

On 13 March 2017, the Court heard the Bank's application for advertisement of the petition and
granted same. The matter was thereon adjourned to 15 May 2017 for hearing of the substantive
application. In the meanwhile the Petitioner has since advertised the petition in some
national newspapers.

The directors are optimistic that a settlement will be reached although, the final cutcome is
uncertain,

{b) Pending litigation and claims

The Group and Company are defendants in various law-suits that have arisen in the normal
course of business. The contingent liabilities in respect of pending litigation at year end
amounted to N202 million (2015: N120 million) in addittion to claims of N1.52billion for under
payment of Value Added Tax made against the company by the Federal Inland Revenue Service
respectively, which is being disputed by the company. In the opinicn of the directors, the Group
and Company's liability is not likely to be significant, thus no provision has been made in these
financial statements.

{c) Financial commitments
As at the end of year, the Company has no financial commitments to any counterparty. The
Directors are of the opinion that all known liabilities and commitments, which are relevant in
assessing the state of affairs of the Company, have been taken into consideration in the
preparation of these financial statements.

Operating leases

The Group and Company lease business premises and employee accommedation under operating
lease agreements which typlcally run for a period of one to four years, with an option to renew at
the expiration of the initial lease periods. Leases are pald for In advance and amounts expensed
have been disclosed in note 9.

Subsequent events

There were no significant subsequent events which could have had a material effect on the Group's
and the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2016 that have not been adeguately
provided for or disclosed in these financial statements.
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32 Going Concern

The Company incurred a loss of N3.1 billion [(2015: N4.2 billion) during the year ended 31 December
2016 and as of that date, the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by N7.9
billign (2015: N4.8 billion), while its total liabilities exceeded its total assets by N 3.4 billion (2015
total liabilities exceeded total assets by MNO3 billion) as at 31 December 2016. Because the
Company has incurred losses over the past five (5) years, the shareholders' fund has reduced
significantly fromm MN3.0 billion as at 31 December 2012 to the deficit of N 3.4 billion as at 31
December 2016

The loss for the year was mainly attributable to the decline in the Company's revenue from M11.0
billion in 2015 to MBS billion and generally increased cost of operations in current year; finance
costs also remain high at N2 billion during the current year (2015 : N2.3 billicn),

The decline in revenue has contributed to the Company's inability to generate sufficient cash from
its operations to settle its obligations and hence has resulted in:

»  [elays in remittance of some statutory government deductions.

o [Difficulty in meeting its cbligations with respect to its impaort finance/stock replacement finance
and overdraft facilities with the Company's bankers which in some instances led to penalty
charges and increased finance costs and litigation (Mote 28(a)).

* [Delays in settlement of its ocbligations to suppliers and other service providers contrary to the
terms of agreemaent,

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. In order to address this, the directors
have undertaken a number of activities aimed at returning the Campany to profitability as follows:

» General restructuring of the company's cperations for greater efficiency and profitability, and
positioning the various component business units to attract potential investars:

*  Plan to commence comprehensive marketing campaign primarily to drive sales.

»  Plan to expand on the non —auto businesses in order ta achieve better sales margins.

* Downsizing the business operations dug to the current widespread low demand for capital
goods with the following measures;
= Drastic reduction in overhead costs
= Closure of all unprofitable business units
= Improved sales of Inventories to reduce bank borrowings and interest expenses

» Subject to the cutcome of the pending court case MNote 29(a)). disposal of some items of
praperty plant and eguipment identified to be surplus to current business requirements,

o Actively exploring the raising of additional equity capital of N10 billion,

The Directors believe that the above plan will be successful and remains confident of the validity of
the golng concern assumption. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on the
basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.
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For the year anded 31 December 2016

Group _
2016 2015
N'000 N'00D
Reveriue §.808.274 | 11,945.313
Bought in materials and services
Imported {3,796,893) (4,624,165)
Local |(6.402,711)| | (8.294.125)
(391,330) (972,977)
Other income 345,946 | 220,767
Finance income | 196829 _ 67,035
Value added/(eroded) 151,445 (685,175)
Distribution of Value Added % %%
To Government as:
Taxation 81.310 BA| [124479) 18
To Employees:
Salaries, wages, fringe and
end of service bensfits 629183 415 829439 (121)
To Providers of Finance:
Finance costs 2057801 | 1.350| 2351482 (343)
Retained in the Business
Te maintain and replace;
property, plant and
equipment 260,077 172 439,653  (64)
intangible assets 24,013 16 1,756
To deplete reserves (2:900,609) | (1.9716) (4.183.008) 610
Value added/(eroded) 151,445 100 (685,175) 100
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Company
2016 2015
N'000 N'000
B.751,2189 11,040,841
(3,407,198) (4,298,639
| (6,096.293) | | (7.930.041)
(752,272) (1,196,839)
341,980 209,535
. 183,834 103,905 |
_ (226,458) (883,399)
e
- (156,636)

517 5668 (229)

2068177 (909)

251,186 (111}
22801 (10)
(3,076;287) 1.359

~ (226,458) 100

147,938

2,339,601

~ (883,399)

%o

(85)

(49)
()
481

100




Financlal summary

Group
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2012

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Revenue 8808274 11945313 20942572 | 21,768,366( 21.980 201
Loss befare income fax (2.818.200)| (4,306,1200| | (1,435,068) {151,602) (Z28,503)
Income tax expense (81.310) 124 479 (386,774) 59 586 (319,670)
Loss for the year (2.900.600)  (4,181,647) (1,821,842) (92.08) (548,173)
Total comprehensive loss
for the vear (2892 Bad)) | (3,300,229) (207,297) (84,242) (290,856)
Loss per share (247) {355) [155]) (8] [32)

Statement of financial position .

31Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2012

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Praperty, plant and equipment 4,586,663 4,780,037 4247719 1,177,588 1,956,763
Intangible assets 3.853 27 966 27,676 12,966 18,447
Goodwill 33.5999 33,999 33,894 33,899 33,8499
Deterred tax assets - - BE3.010 38,877
Man current prepayments 4.5B5 14,259 . :
Other non current receivables 246,114 115,857 165,768 586,087 157,758
Met current liabilities {7.362,686) (4.451.877) {743,2558) 1,214,112 1,048,848
Employes benefits (137,452) (123,827) {142,260} (124, 774) (122,504)
Loans and borrowings (300, 566) {435,689) . : -
Deferred tax liabilities | @143)||  (1463) (322496) | (373234)
Net(liabilities)/assets . {i,.‘.lﬂ,mjl (40,738) 3,257,051 3,049,754 3,133,188
Equity
31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2012
' N'0o0 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Share capital HBB.1TT 58T i1 BBBATT BBE ATV
Share premium 409,862 4014, 862 404, 862 409,862 409,862
Revaluation reserve 2.864.778 2,864,778 2,007,167 . .
Retained earnings (6,810,500}  (3,918,241) 240,964 2,043,648 2,127,102
Mon-controlling interest - 14,686 10,881 BAGY 7,447
| (2,947,683)  (40,738) 3,257,051 3,049,754 3,133,188
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Financial summary

Company

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Hevenue

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

Loss per share

N'000
8,751,219
(3.076.287)
(3.076,28T)
(3.068.522)

(262)

Statement of financial pnsitinh

Praperty, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment in subsidiary
Deterred tax assets

MNon current prepayments
Other non current receivables
Met current {liabilities)/assets
Emplovee benefits

Loans and borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities . -|
Net(liabilities)/assets _{;’Hﬂ,@ (300,807) 3,065,600
Equity

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

[ N'O0D N'000 N'000
Share capital 58B.ATT 5BETT BEBATT
Share premium 409.862 409 862 409 862
Revaluation reserve 2.864.778 2864778 2.007 167
Retained earnings | (7.232.146) (4,163.624) | 60,394 | |

(3,369,329)  (300,807) 3,065,600
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N'000
11,040,841
(4,404,355]

156,536
(4,247 .819)

(3,366.407)

(361)

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015

N'000
19,457 880
(1,052 h44)

(313,670)
(1,872,214)

156925

(159)

N'000
4,581,635
2284
183,576

4 555
246114
(7.949 475)
(137,452)
(300.566)

N'000
4,767,141
25185

169,475

14,2560
115,857
(4,833,208)
{123,827)
(435,689

N'000
4223324
23,683
168,475

155,768
{1,043,940)
{142,260)

(320,450)

N'000
21,618,130
(215,033)
111,246
(103,787)

(96,013}

31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2012

N'000
21,083,788
(317,923)
(4,102
(382,025)

(392,162)

(9) (32)

31 Dec 2012

N'000 N'000
1,160,696 1,118,418
12,866 10447
141 475 052 325
B21.409 41 595
586,087 157,758
878,982 837,188

(124,774)

(368,166

2,908,675

31 Dec 2013
N'000
588,177
409,862

1,910,636

2,908,675

(122,504)
3,004,225

31 Dec 2012
N'000
588,177
409,862

2,006,186
3,004,225
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1. PURPOSE
The purpose of this Complaints Management Policy is to ensure that R.T. Briscoe achieves excellence
in complaints management. This policy applies to all participants in the Complaints Management
process, inciuding R.T. Briscoe, its staff and agents, iis shareholders, customers and interested third
parties. The purpose of this Policyis to:

* provide amavenue for customer communication and feedback;

¥ recognise, promete and protect the customers nights, including the nght 1o comment and
provide feedback on service!

. provide an efficient, fair and accessible framework for resclving complaints and monitoring
feedback toimprove service delivery;

. inform customers on the customer feedback handling processes; and

. provide staff with information about the customer feedback process.

2. DEFINITIONOFACOMPLAINT
A complairt is anexpression of dissatisfaction made to R.T. Briscoe related to its products, services or
the performance. behaviour and conduct of staff, or the complaints handling process itself, wherea
response or resolution is explicitly or implicitly expected. A complaint may be made in person, by
phone, fax, email orinwriting.

3. POLICY STATEMENT
3.1 R.T. Briscoe is committed to resolving complaints by applying the following principles through
the complaints handling process in an equitable, chjective and unbiased manner—

* Openness to ensure both R T Briscoe staff and complainants understand the complaints
handling process:

« |mpartiality to ensure a balanced consideration of all infermation and evidence is undertaken
before a complaint can be resolved without fear or favour;

= Confidentiality toensure the complainants and customer's identities are protected;

« Accessibility to ensure all parties concerned are aware of the complaints handling process
and the lodged complaints progress;

* Completenessto ensure all available information and evidence has been collected from both
sides;

« Eguitytoensure equal treatment toall people; and

=  Sensitivity to ensure each case is considered on its merits, paying due care to Individual
ditferences and neads.

3.2 TheComplaint Management Policy is based on the following principles:

*  Complainants should be encouraged tovoice their concerns at the paint of service as soon as
they feel unsatistied. Staff may then be able to resolve the matter without delay;

= wherevar possible, complaints should be resolved at the point from which they originate;

= information about how and where to complain should be well publicized 1o customers,
shareholders, staff and other interested parties;

= Complaint management mechanisms should be easily accessible to all complaimants; and

*  The process should be easyto find, use and understand,
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4.1

4.2

43

4.4

IMPLEMENTATION

Responsibilities

All staff of R.T. Briscoe shall be responsible for receiving customer feedback and are to give priority to
assist in the resolution of customer complaints. They will resolve miner verbal complaints where
appropriate or refer maore serigus verbal orwritten complainis directly to their immediate Supervisor,

General Managers
General Managers shall ensure that the Complaints Management Policy is implemented in their
respective Divisions and -

« advise the Managing Director of the nature of any major complaints and action taken or to be
taken:

P document all complaints received and how they were resolved, inciuding any changes that may
be required to delivery of service;and

. Review and investigate all unresolved complaints.

Managing Director
The Managing Director will take overall responsibility for any complaints and have them addressed
through General Managers asappropriate.

Electronic Complaints Register
R. T. Briscoe shall maintain an electronic Complaints Register of complaints by shareholders which
shall be updated monthly contain the following details:

= Mameofthecomplainant

»  Matureof complaint
«  Statusanddatesof resolutionofthe complaint
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General Manc For Trenscericns. ;
With Related Parties Or Interested Perseons

The Rules governing transactions with related parties or interested persons issued by Tha Nigerian Stock
Exchange require the company to make the following disclosures when seeking a general mandate for
transactions with interesied persans.

Class of Persons

The Company will be transacting business with suppliers of motor vehicles and technical eqguipment which
include Toyota Migeria Limited, the autharized sole importer and distributor of Toyotavehicles in Nigeria. An
interested person connected to a controlling shareholder in R.T. Briscoe (Migeria) PLC also has significant
interest and is connected with a controlling shareholderin Toyota Migeria Limited.

Nature of Transaction
The transactions contemplated under the general mandate sought include the purchase of Toyota motor
vehicles and parts from Toyota Nigeria Limited by R.T. Briscoe (Nigeria) PLC.

Rationale and Benefit

The rationale and berefit of the proposed interested person transactions are that they are indispensable to
the business activities of the company in view of the volume of business involved and the position of Toyota
Migeria Limited as the sele authorized importer and distributor of Tovotavehicles into the country.

Methods or Procedures for Determining Transaction Prices

Transaction prices are determined in accordance with normal commercial terms and ordinary course of
business in the auto industry and more particularly, the provisions of the Dealership agreement between
Toyota Migeria Limited and BT Briscoe (Migena) PLC. The methods or procedures for determining
transaction prices are sufficient to ensure that the transactions shall be carried out on normal commercial
terms and shall not be prejudicial to the interests of the company and its minority shareholders. The
Company shall obtain a fresh mandate from shareholders if the methods or procedures for determining
transaction prices become inappropniate.

Voting on Interested Transactions

Arinterested person shall abstain, and undertake to ensure that its associates shall abstain fromvoting on
a resolution approving an interested person transaction. In compliance with the Rules of The MNigerian
Stock Exchange on General Meetings, an interested person or its associate shall abstain from votingon a
resolution at the Annual General Meeting for the approval of a general mandate concerning transactions
with that interested person.

Disclosures

Disclosures in the notes to the accounts include the aggregate values of transactions conducted with
related parties in the course of the financial year together with the names of the related party, nature of the
transaction and the transactionvalue,

Definitions
“Interested person” means a director, chief executive officer, or controlling shareholder of the company or
any person connected to such director, chief executive officer, orcontrolling shareholder.

‘Interested person transaction” means atransaction between the company and an interasted person.
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The unclaimed dividend as at 31st December, 2016 are as follows:

Dividend Date Paid
24 25.04.08
25 15.08.09
26 28.05.10
21 270511
24 29.08.12
TOTAL

SN Sript No.

1 M

e 0z

3 03

4 (14

b 5

E 06

i iy

H L8

5 09

10 10

11 11

12 12

13 1:

14 14

Unclaimed Dividends

N'O0OD
25,218 720,16
25,117,377.03

8,083,671.33
9,087,257.37
14,066,694.46

44,826,611.30

Date of Issue

29.08.75
181078
141077
31.10.80
30.11.87
£9.10.82
240403
29,0404
26.04.07
24.04.08
01.04.09
21.04.10
29.04.11
26.06.12

UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS

We wish to notify our shareholders that a number of dividend warrants have been retumed unclaimed
because the addresses on them could not be traced. The shareholder concerned had either changed his or
heraddress ordid notcollect them from the post office in gooad time.

We advise all affected shareholders to write to our registrars, Meristem Registrars Limited, 213, Herbert
Macauley Way, Adekunle, Yaba, P O. Box 51585 Falomo, lkoyi. Lagos State for theirunclaimed dividends.

The list of unclaimed Dividend are also available at the Registrar's website —ww.meristemregistrars.com
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Dear Sharehalder,

Experience as shown that despite our tradition of despatching your dividend and mandate warrants the
day after they are approved at the Annual General Meeting, many shareholders still do not receive their
dividend warrants weeks and in some cases even months afterthe dividend warrants were dispatched.

To forestall this and facilitate the prompt receipt of your future dividends and bonus certificates, the e-
dividend and e-bonus were introduced a few years ago. They provide a fast, reliable and efficient way of
receiving your dividends and scrips directly into your bank and personal accounis with the Central
Securities Clearing System (CSCS).

To benefit from the e-dividend and e-bonus system, vou will be require to have a bank account as well asa
CSCS account to be opened with the assistance of a stockbroker of your choice. The mandate form on the
next page was designed with the purpose in mind. Please fill it as appropriate and forward to our Registrars
forfurther action.

For further information, we advise that you get in touch either of the following:

The Company Sacretary

R. T. Briscoe (Nigeria) Plc The Registrar
18, Fatai Atere Way Meristem Registrars Limited
Matori, Lagos. 213, Herbert Macauley Way

Adekunle, Yaba, Lagos.
Telephone Lines:

01- 2703477 Telephone Lines:
01- 2703487 +234 (1) 2809250-3
O0TOOMERIREG

e-mail address:

Briscoemail@rtbriscoe.com e-mail address
info@meristemregistrars.com

Website:

www.ribriscoe.com Website:

www.meristemregistrars.com
Yours taithtully,

\OeeAcle L——

Olukayode Adeoluwa
(FRC/2013/NBA/QDDDODGZ108)
Olukayode Adeoluwa & Co.
Company Secretary

AT Brecoe (Ngena) Plo §Areusl Fapod and Fisancial Siolemeris 2018 ¢/ wwsaoibnocos . com
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E-dividend Mandate Activation Form

A /
Passport MERISTEME

T be starnpad by Banlars) REGISTRARS LIMITED
213, Herbor Macaubey Wary, Adekunke, Yaka
g ey ,I'_. ey P = = 1 PO. Box 51585, Falomo lkoyl, Lagos
i Only Clearing Banks are acceptabla | Prome: +234 (1) 2800250-3, 0T0OMERIREG

Fi @1-270256%  e-mall: indpimenslemmegisines.com

b

. Website: www.meristemregistrars.com
Instruction '

Please complete all sections of this form to make it eligible for processing and return to the
address below

The Registrar

Meristem Registrars Limited
213, Herbert Macaulay Way
Adekunle-Yaba

Lagos State

I'"We hereby request that henceforth, all my\our Dividend Payment(s) due to me\us from my\our
holdings in all the companies ticked at the right hand column be credited directly to my \our bank
account detailed below:

Bank Verification Mumber

Bank Name

=
| S—
i
f
}

Bank Account Number
Account Opening Date

Shareholder Account Information

Surname/Company's Name First Name OtherNames
Address: |
City State Country

Previpus Address (If address haschanged) |

CHN| |1 CSCSA/eNo |

Mame of Stockbroker

Maobile Telephone 1| . Mobile Telephone 2 .

Ernail Address

Signature(s) |
Cormpany Seal (if applicable)

Joint\Company's Signatories

Help Desk Telephone No/Contact Centre Information for Issue resolution or clarification:

01-2809250-4

AT Brimoos [Mhgera) P | dnnual Rapot and Froncial Stolemesnls 2076 § swsifmacoe com
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Please
Affix
Postage

tamp

THE REGISTRARS,

/

MERISTEM§
o ; _
REGISTRARS LIMITED
213, Herberf Macauley Way, Adekunle, Yaha
P . Bax 51585, Faloma lkoyi, Lagas
Phaona: +234 (1) 2809250-3, TOOMERIREG

Faw: 01-270Z361  e-rmall: infoifm menslemegiskars com

Website: www.meristemregistrars.com



R.T. BRISCOE iNIGERIA) PLC (RC: 1482

AMMUAL GEMERAL MEETING to be at held at 11.00 a.m. on
Thursday, the 27th of July, 2017 at NECA HOUSE, PLOT A2,
HAKEEM BALOGUMN STREET, CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT,
ALALUSA, IKEJA, LAGOS,

BVE i e i s e e e S e
being a mamber/members of B T BRISCOE (NIGERIA) PLC
hereby appoint

L

or faing him/her, Sir 5. M. Mwosu or failing him, Mr. B. O,
Onajide as my/our proxy to vote for ma‘us at the General
Meeting of the Company to be held on 27th July, 2017 at 11.00
am. and at any adjournment thereof, Unless otherwise
instructed, the prowy will vote or abstain from voting as he thinks
fit.

Dated this. o i || R I T TR PR T 2m7
I T I s B G GBS ANV R :
* In the case of joint Shareholders, anyone of such may

complete the form. but the names of all joint holders must be
stated

MUMBER OF SHARES HELD:

Resolutions

Far

Against

To re-elect as Directors:
1, Alhaji Al Satiyanu Madugu
2. Sir Sunday Nnamd| Nwosu

To approve the appointment of:
Mrs. E O, Ogunde

To authorise the Directors to fix

the remuneration of the Auditors,

To elect members of the
Audit Committes.

To fix the remuneration of
the Directors,

To raise additional capital
of up ta N10 billion

To autherise the company to
procure goods and services
necessary for its operations

trom related companies

To be effective, this proxy form should be duly completed and
stamped by the Commissioner for Stamp Duties in accordance
with the Stamp Duties Act belore posting it te reach the address
below not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the
Meseting.

Please Indicate with ‘X' in the appropriate sguare
how you wish your vote to be cast on the resolutions
set out above

Before posfing the abave form, please cut off s pard and refain it
R. T BRISCOE (NIGERIA) PLC
18, FATAI ATERE WAY, MATORI, OSHODI, B O, BOX 2104, LAGOS.

ADMISSION FORM

R.T BRISCOE (NIGERLA) PLC (RC: 1482)
AMNNUAL GENERAL MEETING to be at held at 11.00 a.m. on Thursday, the 27th of July, 2017 at NECA HOUSE, PLOT AZ,
HAKEEM BALOGUMN STREET, CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, ALAUSA, IKEJA, LAGOS,

Mame of Sharehaolder

A member (Shareholder) who is unable to atiend the Company’s General Meeting is allowed by law to vole on a poll by
proxy. The representative of any Corporation, which is 8 member, may atso vote on a show of hands: The above prasy form
has been prepared to enable you 0 exercise your right to vole, in case you cannot personally attend the above Annual
General Meeting.

Fallowing the normal practice, the names of two directors of the Company have been entered an the form to ensure that
someane will be at the Meeting to act as your proxy, but if you wish, you may insert in the biank space onthe form (rmarked
=* the namea of any person, whether a member of the Company or nat, who will attend and vote on vour behalf Instead of
one of the directors.

Pleasea sign the above proxy form, have it stamped by the Commissioner for Stamp Duties and then past it 50 as to reach
the addresson the reverse side of the proxy not less than 48 hours betore the time for holding the Meeting
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Please
Affix
Postage

tamp

THE REGISTRARS,

/

MERISTEM§
o ; _
REGISTRARS LIMITED
213, Herberf Macauley Way, Adekunle, Yaha
P . Bax 51585, Faloma lkoyi, Lagas
Phaona: +234 (1) 2809250-3, TOOMERIREG

Faw: 01-270Z361  e-rmall: infoifm menslemegiskars com

Website: www.meristemregistrars.com
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Enquiries
Endurance 0817 458 9355,
BRISCOE PROPERTIES LIMITED 0802 898 6930

- 1 - -

bpl@rtbriscoe.com

WA ..u__m_mr...._u“u..u_.n_ﬁ;___u_u com
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BRISCOE

A.T. BRISCOE (MIGERIA) PLC
RC 1482
18, Fatai Atere Way, Maton, Oshodi, PO. Box 2104, Lagas,
Tel: (OL) 2703477, 2703478 Fax (01) 2793216
E-mail = briscoemaii@rtbriscoe.com

wWww.rtbriscoe.com
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